
 
 
Bill Cullen MBA (ISM), BA(Hons) MRTPI 

Chief Executive 

 

 
Hinckley Hub • Rugby Road • Hinckley • Leicestershire • LE10 0FR 

Telephone 01455 238141 • MDX No 716429 • Fax 01455 251172 • www.hinckley-bosworth.gov.uk 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To: Members of the Audit Committee 

 
 Cllr DS Cope (Chairman) 

Cllr A Pendlebury (Vice-Chairman) 
Cllr MA Cook 
Cllr REH Flemming 
Cllr L Hodgkins 
Cllr C Ladkin 
 

Cllr MR Lay 
Cllr RB Roberts 
Cllr BR Walker 
Cllr HG Williams 
Cllr P Williams 
 

 
Copy to all other Members of the Council 
 
(other recipients for information) 
 
Dear member, 
 
There will be a meeting of the AUDIT COMMITTEE in the De Montfort Suite, Hinckley Hub on 
WEDNESDAY, 24 NOVEMBER 2021 at 6.30 pm and your attendance is required. 
 
The agenda for the meeting is set out overleaf. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
 
Rebecca Owen 
Democratic Services Manager 
 

Date: 16 November 2021 

Public Document Pack



 

 
Hinckley Hub • Rugby Road • Hinckley • Leicestershire • LE10 0FR 

Telephone 01455 238141 • MDX No 716429 • Fax 01455 251172 • www.hinckley-bosworth.gov.uk 
 

Fire Evacuation Procedures 
 

 On hearing the fire alarm, leave the building at once quickly and calmly by the nearest 
escape route (indicated by green signs). 

 

 There are two escape routes from the Council Chamber – at the side and rear. Leave 
via the door closest to you. 

 

 Proceed to Willowbank Road car park, accessed from Rugby Road then Willowbank 
Road. 

 

 Do not use the lifts. 
 

 Do not stop to collect belongings. 
 
 

Recording of meetings 
 

At HBBC we are open and transparent about how we make decisions. We allow recording, 
filming and photography at all public meetings including Council, the Executive and Planning 
Committee as long as doing so does not disturb or disrupt the proceedings. There may 
occasionally be some reports that are discussed in private session where legislation requires 
this to happen, but this is infrequent. 
 
We also allow the use of social media during meetings, which helps to bring the issues 
discussed to a wider audience. 
 
Members of the public, members of the press and councillors are hereby informed that, in 
attending the meeting, you may be captured on film. If you have a particular problem with this, 
please contact us so we can discuss how we may accommodate you at the meeting. 
 
 

Use of mobile phones 
 

To minimise disturbance to others attending the meeting, please switch off your phone or other 
mobile device or turn it onto silent or vibrate mode. 
 

Thank you 



 

 
Hinckley Hub • Rugby Road • Hinckley • Leicestershire • LE10 0FR 

Telephone 01455 238141 • MDX No 716429 • Fax 01455 251172 • www.hinckley-bosworth.gov.uk 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE -  24 NOVEMBER 2021 
 

A G E N D A 
 

1.   APOLOGIES AND SUBSTITUTIONS  

2.   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 4) 

 To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting. 

3.   ADDITIONAL URGENT BUSINESS BY REASON OF SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES  

 To be advised of any additional items of business which the Chairman decides by reason 
of special circumstances shall be taken as matters of urgency at this meeting (to be taken 
at the end of the agenda) 

4.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 To receive verbally from members any disclosures which they are required to make in 
accordance with the Council’s code of conduct or in pursuance of Section 106 of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992. This is in addition to the need for such disclosure to 
be also given when the relevant matter is reached on the agenda. 

5.   QUESTIONS  

 To hear any questions received in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 12. 

6.   ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER 2019/2020 (Pages 5 - 30) 

 Report of the external auditor issued following completion of audit procedures for the year 
ended 31 March 2020. 

7.   FINAL AUDIT RESULTS REPORT (Pages 31 - 86) 

 Report from the external auditor to presenting the final audit conclusion for 2019/20. 

8.   AUDIT OF ACCOUNTS 2020/21 (Pages 87 - 88) 

 Letter from the external auditor in relation to the 2020/21 audit. 

9.   AUDIT PLANNING REPORT (Pages 89 - 130) 

 Report of the external auditor setting out the approach and scope for the 2020/21 audit. 

10.   INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT (Pages 131 - 138) 

 Report of the internal auditor to update on progress in relation to audit work. 

11.   ANY OTHER ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES HAVE TO BE 
DEALT WITH AS MATTERS OF URGENCY  

 As announced under item 3 above. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



-44 - 

HINCKLEY AND BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

25 AUGUST 2021 AT 6.30 PM 
 
 
PRESENT: Cllr DS Cope - Chairman 
 Cllr A Pendlebury – Vice-Chairman 
Cllr MA Cook, Cllr REH Flemming, Cllr C Ladkin, Cllr RB Roberts, Cllr HG Williams, 
Cllr P Williams and Cllr R Webber-Jones 
 
Members in attendance: Councillors Cllr KWP Lynch 
 
Officers in attendance: Rebecca Owen, Rebecca Valentine-Wilkinson and Ashley 
Wilson, Zoe Thomas from internal audit was also in attendance 
 

118 APOLOGIES AND SUBSTITUTIONS  
 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors L Hodgkins, M Lay & B 
Walker with the following substitutions authorised in accordance with council procedure 
rule 10: 
 
Councillor Webber-Jones for Councillor Walker 
 

119 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 9 June 2021. 
 
It was moved by Councillor Pendlebury, seconded by Councillor Fleming and 

RESOLVED – the minutes of the meeting held on 9 June be approved as 
a correct record 

 
Councillor Webber-Jones entered the meeting at 6.32 p.m. 
 

120 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
No interests were declared. 
 

121 ARRANGEMENTS FOR APPOINTING THE EXTERNAL AUDITORS  
 
The content of the report was considered and it was agreed that the preferred option was 
to go with the contract managed by Public Sector Audit Appoints Ltd (PSAA) which was 
set up by the Local Government Association (LGA) with delegated authority from the 
Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government to appoint the external 
auditors when our current contract runs out from 2023/24. 
 

RESOLVED – Council be RECOMMENDED to remain in the PSAA 
framework 

 
122 UNAUDITED STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2020/21  

 
The draft financial statement for 2020/21 that were subject to external audit were 
presented. 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



 

-45 - 

The Head of Finance highlighted that additional Government grants and coronavirus had 
had a significant influence on the accounts over the last year, with significant growth 
required on expenditure in certain departments. 
 
 

123 COMMERCIAL RENTS INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT  
 
The internal auditors presented the commercial rents report which provided an 
independent assessment of the effectiveness of the council’s financial management of its 
industrial units. 
 
The audit gave overall insurance with improvement required but did identify some areas 
of good practice. There were also some areas of concern, with regard to separation of 
duties and lack of documentation and evidence of rent reviews and backlog on updating 
lease agreements. 
 
The auditors confirmed that in the intervening periods they had caught up on some of the 
backlogs. 
 
The Internal Auditors would look at the follow up arrangements within the next six 
months. 
 
A member expressed concern that the report didn’t cover Block C of the Crescent. In 
response, the auditor reported that it wasn’t within the scope of the audit. 
 
Members noted the report. 
 

124 COMMUNICATIONS STRATEGY INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT - AUGUST 2021  
 
The internal auditors presented the communications strategy internal audit report  
 
The internal auditors confirmed significant assurance in this area with two relatively low 
risks and confirmed that good processes were in place and it was a very positive report. 
 
Members noted the report. 
 

125 RISK MANAGEMENT INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT  
 
The internal auditors presented the risk management internal audit report. 
 
This year an audit of the risk management processes had been undertaken as part of the 
approved internal audit plan for 2020/21. 
 
They concluded that the processes provided a partial level of assurance with 
improvement required as there were some weaknesses in the controls designed to 
mitigate the risk management process examined during this audit.   
 
Members noted the report. 
 

126 INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORTS & SECTOR UPDATE  
 
The internal auditors presented the internal audit progress and sector update reports. 
 
Members noted the report. 
 
 

(The Meeting closed at 7.29 pm) 

Page 2



 

-46 - 

 
 
 

 CHAIRMAN 
 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Hinckley and 
Bosworth Borough 
Council
Annual Audit Letter for the year 
ended 31 March 2020

September 2021

P
age 5

A
genda Item

 6



Ref: EY-000092651-
01

Page

Section 1 Executive Summary 3

Section 2 Purpose and Responsibilities 7

Section 3 Financial Statement Audit 10

Section 4 Value for Money 18

Section 5 Other Reporting Issues 21

Appendices

Appendix A Audit Fees 24

Contents

Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council 2

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) have issued a ‘Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited 
bodies’. It is available from the Chief Executive of each audited body and via the PSAA website (www.psaa.co.uk). 

This Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and 
audited bodies. It summarises where the different responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and 
what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas.

The ‘Terms of Appointment (updated April 2018)’ issued by PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors 
must comply with, over and above those set out in the National Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and 
statute, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.

This Audit Results Report is prepared in the context of the Statement of responsibilities. It is addressed to the 
Members of the audited body, and is prepared for their sole use. We, as appointed auditor, take no responsibility to 
any third party.

Our Complaints Procedure – If at any time you would like to discuss with us how our service to you could be 
improved, or if you are dissatisfied with the service you are receiving, you may take the issue up with your usual 
partner or director contact. If you prefer an alternative route, please contact Hywel Ball, our Managing Partner, 1 
More London Place, London SE1 2AF. We undertake to look into any complaint carefully and promptly and to do all 
we can to explain the position to you. Should you remain dissatisfied with any aspect of our service, you may of 
course take matters up with our professional institute. We can provide further information on how you may contact 
our professional institute.

P
age 6

http://www.psaa.co.uk/


Ref: EY-000092651-
01

Section 1

Executive Summary

Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council 3

P
age 7



Ref: EY-000092651-
01

We are required to issue an annual audit letter to Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council (the Council) following completion of our audit procedures for the year 
ended 31 March 2020. Covid-19 had an impact on a number of aspects of our 2019/20 audit. We set out these key impacts below. 

Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council 4

Executive Summary

Area of impact Commentary

Impact on the delivery of the audit

► Changes to reporting timescales As a result of Covid-19, new regulations, the Accounts and Audit (Coronavirus) (Amendment) Regulations 2020 No. 
404, have been published and came into force on 30 April 2020. This announced a change to publication date for 
final, audited accounts from 31 July to 30 November 2020 for all relevant authorities.

Impact on our risk assessment

► Valuation of Property Plant and Equipment The Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS), the body setting the standards for property valuations, issued 
guidance to valuers highlighting that the uncertain impact of Covid-19 on markets might cause a valuer to conclude 
that there is a material uncertainty. Caveats around this material uncertainty have been included in the year-end 
valuation reports produced by the Council’s external valuer. We consider that the material uncertainties disclosed by 
the valuer gave rise to an additional risk relating to disclosures on the valuation of property, plant and equipment. 

► Disclosures on Going Concern Medium term financial plans will need revision for Covid-19. We considered the unpredictability of the current 
environment gave rise to a risk that the council would not appropriately disclose the key factors relating to going 
concern, underpinned by managements assessment with particular reference to Covid-19 and the Council’s actual 
year end financial position and performance. 

► Events after the balance sheet date We identified an increased risk that further events after the balance sheet date concerning the current Covid-19 
pandemic will need to be disclosed. The amount of detail required in the disclosure needed to reflect the specific 
circumstances of the Council.

Impact on the scope of our audit

► Information Produced by the Entity (IPE) We identified an increased risk around the completeness, accuracy, and appropriateness of information produced by 
the entity due to the inability of the audit team to verify original documents or re-run reports on-site from the 
Council’s systems. We undertook the following to address this risk:

• Used the screen sharing function of Microsoft Teams to evidence re-running of reports used to generate the IPE 
we audited; and

• Agree IPE to scanned documents or other system screenshots.

► Consultation requirements Additional EY consultation requirements concerning the impact on auditor reports. The changes to audit risks and 
audit approach changed the level of work we needed to perform.

P
age 8



Ref: EY-000092651-01

The tables below set out the results and conclusions on the significant areas of the audit process. 

Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council 5

Area of Work Conclusion

► Financial statements Unqualified– the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council as at 
31 March 2020 and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended 

► Consistency of other information published with the 
financial statements

Other information published with the financial statements was consistent with the Annual Accounts

► Concluding on the Council’s arrangements for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness

We concluded that you have put in place proper arrangements to secure value for money in your use of 
resources 

Area of Work Conclusion

Reports by exception:

► Consistency of Governance Statement The Governance Statement was consistent with our understanding of the Council.

► Public interest report We had no matters to report in the public interest.

► Written recommendations to the Council, which 
should be copied to the Secretary of State

We had no matters to report.

► Other actions taken in relation to our responsibilities 
under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014

We had no matters to report. 

Executive Summary (cont’d)

Opinion on the Council’s:

P
age 9



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Executive Summary (cont’d)

Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council 6

As a result of the above we have also:

Area of Work Conclusion

Reporting to the National Audit Office (NAO) on our 
review of the Council’s Whole of Government Accounts 
return (WGA). 

We had no matters to report.

The Council is below the specified audit threshold of £500mn. Therefore, we did not perform any audit 
procedures on the consolidation pack.

Area of Work Conclusion

Issued a report to those charged with governance of 
the Council communicating significant findings 
resulting from our audit.

Our initial Audit Results Report was presented on 24 November 2020 and final Audit Results Report 
distributed to the Audit Committee on 08 September 2021

Issued a certificate that we have completed the audit in 
accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit 
and Accountability Act 2014 and the National Audit 
Office’s 2015 Code of Audit Practice.

Our certificate was issued on 09 September 2021

We would like to take this opportunity to thank the Council’s staff for their assistance during the course of our work.

Helen Henshaw
Associate Partner
For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

P
age 10



Ref: EY-000092651-
01

Section 2

Purpose and 
Responsibilities

e
Responsibilities

P
age 11



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Purpose

Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council 8

The Purpose of this Letter

The purpose of this annual audit letter is to communicate to Members and external stakeholders, including members of the publ ic, the key issues arising from 
our work, which we consider should be brought to the attention of the Council. 

We have already reported the detailed findings from our audit work in our 2019/20 Audit Results Report to the 24 November 2020, Audit and Standards 
Committee, representing those charged with governance. An updated, final Audit Results Report was distributed to the Audit Committee on 09 September 
2021. We do not repeat those detailed findings in this letter. The matters reported here are the most significant for the Council.

P
age 12



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Responsibilities

Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council 9

Responsibilities of the Appointed Auditor

Our 2019/20 audit work has been undertaken in accordance with the Audit Plan that we issued on 1 May 2020 and is conducted in accordance with the National 
Audit Office's 2015 Code of Audit Practice, International Standards on Auditing (UK), and other guidance issued by the National Audit Office. 

As auditors we are responsible for:

► Expressing an opinion:

► On the 2019/20 financial statements; and

► On the consistency of other information published with the financial statements.

► Forming a conclusion on the arrangements the Council has to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

► Reporting by exception:

► If the annual governance statement is misleading or not consistent with our understanding of the Council;

► Any significant matters that are in the public interest; 

► Any written recommendations to the Council, which should be copied to the Secretary of State; and

► If we have discharged our duties and responsibilities as established by the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and Code of Audit Practice. 

Alongside our work on the financial statements, we also review and report to the National Audit Office (NAO) on your Whole of Government Accounts return. The 
Council is below the specified audit threshold of £500mn. Therefore, we did not perform any audit procedures on the return.

Responsibilities of the Council

The Council is responsible for preparing and publishing its statement of accounts accompanied by an Annual Governance Statement (AGS). In the AGS, the Council 
reports publicly each year on how far it complies with its own code of governance, including how it has monitored and evaluated the effectiveness of its governance 
arrangements in year, and any changes planned in the coming period. 

The Council is also responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

P
age 13



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Section 3

Financial Statement 
Audit

P
age 14



Ref: EY-000092651-01
Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council 11

Key Issues

The Council’s Statement of Accounts is an important tool for the Council to show how it has used public money and how it can demonstrate its financial 
management and financial health.

We audited the Council’s Statement of Accounts in line with the National Audit Office’s 2015 Code of Audit Practice, Internat ional Standards on Auditing (UK), and 
other guidance issued by the National Audit Office and issued an unqualified audit report on 09 September 2021.

Our detailed findings were reported to the 24 November 2020 Audit Committee and final Audit Results Report circulated on 08 September 2021.

The key issues identified as part of our audit were as follows:

Financial Statement Audit

Significant Risk Conclusion

Misstatements due to fraud or error

The financial statements as a whole are not free of material 
misstatements whether caused by fraud or error.

As identified in ISA (UK and Ireland) 240, management is in a 
unique position to perpetrate fraud because of its ability to 
manipulate accounting records directly or indirectly and prepare 
fraudulent financial statements by overriding controls that 
otherwise appear to be operating effectively. We identify and 
respond to this fraud risk on every audit engagement.

Our audit work found no evidence that management had attempted to override internal 
controls. 

We have not identified any instances of inappropriate judgements being applied. 

We did not identify any other transactions during our audit which appeared unusual or outside 
the Authority‘s normal course of business. 

This conclusion is based on detailed testing of accounts entries susceptible to potential 
manipulation

P
age 15



Ref: EY-000092651-01
Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council 12

Significant Risk Conclusion

Risk of fraud in revenue and expenditure recognition

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that revenue may be misstated due to improper revenue recognition. In the public 
sector, this requirement is modified by Practice Note 10 issued by the Financial Reporting Council, which states that auditors 
should also consider the risk that material misstatements may occur by the manipulation of expenditure recognition. 

We focused on the following risk areas:

• Inappropriate capitalisation of revenue expenditure and could result in a misstatement of cost of services reported in the 
comprehensive income and expenditure statement.

In order to address this risk we carried out the following procedures:

• Reviewed the appropriateness of expenditure recognition and capitalisation accounting policies;

• Using our data analytics tool to identified and tested the appropriateness of journal entries recorded in the general ledger 
and other adjustments made in the preparation of the financial statement, specifically those that move expenditure to PPE 
balance sheet general ledger codes; and

• Performed sample testing on additions to PPE to ensure that they have been correctly classified as capital and included at 
the correct value to identify any revenue items that have been inappropriately capitalised. 

Our audit work has not identified any 
material issues or unusual transactions 
to indicate any misreporting of the 
Authority’s financial position.

The key issues identified as part of our audit were as follows: (cont’d)

Financial Statement Audit (cont’d)

P
age 16



Ref: EY-000092651-01
Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council 13

Significant Risk Conclusion

Valuation of PPE

The fair value of other land and buildings represents significant balances in the council’s accounts and are subject to valuation 
changes, impairment reviews and depreciation charges. Management is required to make material judgemental inputs and apply 
estimation techniques to calculate the year-end balances recorded in the balance sheet.

The Council will engage an external expert valuer who will apply a number of complex assumptions to these assets. Annually 
assets are assessed to identify whether there is any indication of impairment.  As the Council’s asset base is significant, and the 
outputs from the valuer are subject to estimation, there is a risk fixed assets may be under/ overstated. ISAs (UK and Ireland) 
500 and 540 require us to undertake procedures on the use of management experts and the assumptions underlying fair value 
estimates.

Management have chosen to use a different valuation specialist for the 2019/20 financial year. As a result, we have increased
the risk profile attached to this area of the financial statements.

To gain assurance in this area we:

• Considered the work performed by the external valuer, including the adequacy of the scope of the work performed, their 
professional capabilities and the results of their work;

• Sample tested key asset information used by the valuers in performing their valuation (e.g. floor plans to support valuations
based on price per square metre);

• Considered the annual cycle of valuations to ensure that assets have been valued within a 5 year rolling programme as 
required by the Code for PPE and annually for Investment Property. We also considered if there are any specific changes to 
assets that have occurred and whether these have been communicated to the valuer;

• Reviewed assets not subject to valuation in 2019/20 to confirm that the remaining asset base is not materially misstated;

• Considered changes to useful economic lives as a result of the most recent valuation; 

• Tested accounting entries have been correctly processed in the financial statements; and

• Engaged EY Real Estates team to perform a review of the valuer’s estimation methods and to review the valuation of a 
sample of assets.

We engaged EY Real Estates to perform 
a review of assets. We identified a 
number of assets which fell outside of 
EY Real Estate’s acceptable range. The 
net impact was not material – PPE 
understated by £64k.

We identified one asset under 
construction (Ambion Court) which was 
incorrectly revalued in year. The impact 
was not material – PPE (AUC) 
understated by £237k.

The key issues identified as part of our audit were as follows: (cont’d)

Financial Statement Audit (cont’d)

P
age 17



Ref: EY-000092651-01
Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council 14

The key issues identified as part of our audit were as follows: (cont’d)

Financial Statement Audit (cont’d)

Other areas of higher inherent risk Conclusion

Net pension liability valuation

The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require the Council to make extensive disclosures within its 
financial statements regarding its membership of the Local Government Pension Scheme administered by 
Leicestershire County Council.

The Council’s pension fund net liability is a material estimated balance and the Code requires that this liability be 
disclosed on the Council’s balance sheet. At 31 March 2020 this totalled £31,226k. The information disclosed is based 
on the IAS 19 report issued to the Council by the actuary to the County Council.

Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and judgement and therefore management engages an 
actuary to undertake the calculations on their behalf. ISAs (UK and Ireland) 500 and 540 require us to undertake 
procedures on the use of management experts and the assumptions underlying fair value estimates.

To gain assurance in this area we:
• Liaised with the auditors of Leicestershire Pension Fund to obtain assurances over the information supplied to the 

actuary in relation to Leicestershire County Council.

• Assess the work of the Pension Fund actuary (Hymans Robertson) including the assumptions they have used by 
relying on the work of PWC - Consulting Actuaries commissioned by Public Sector Auditor Appointments for all Local 
Government sector auditors, and considering any relevant reviews by the EY actuarial team.

• Review and test the accounting entries and disclosures made within the Council’s financial statements in relation to 
IAS19; and in addition to the tasks originally set out in our audit plan:

• Reviewed the Council’s calculation of the impact of the ‘McCloud’ and ‘Goodwin’ judgement noting that the post 
balance sheet events did not have a material impact on the pension liability and therefore are not required to be 
disclosed as post balance sheet event. 

Overall our audit work did not identify 
any material issues in relation to the 
value of the Net pension liability valuation

P
age 18



Ref: EY-000092651-01
Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council 15

Other areas of higher inherent risk Conclusion

NNDR Appeals Provision

The Council calculates an NNDR (business rates) appeals provision in relation to appeals made by businesses which believe 
that the NNDR that they have paid in previous years was inflated due to an unreasonably high RV (Rateable value). The 
calculation involves a significant amount of estimation uncertainty and typically includes the use of an expert. As such, the
value of the NNDR appeals provision is identified as an area which has an increased risk of material misstatement.

We have:

• Reviewed the methodology behind the calculation for the NNDR appeals provision, testing the assumptions used and 
the calculations applied;

• Assessed the data used in the calculation – agreeing the values and attesting the completeness of appeals by agreeing 
to third party source information; and

• Enquired of management’s specialist – obtain an understanding of their input into their process, their qualifications and 
expertise. 

Overall our audit work did not identify 
any material issues in relation to the 
value of the NNDR Appeals Provision

The key issues identified as part of our audit were as follows: (cont’d)

Financial Statement Audit (cont’d)

P
age 19



Ref: EY-000092651-01
Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council 16

Other Risk Conclusion

Going Concern

Covid-19 has created a number of financial pressures throughout Local Government. There is currently not a clear statement of 
financial support from MHCLG that covers all financial consequences of Covid-19.

There have been a number of media stories in both the national press and trade publications raising the possibilities of an 
increase in Chief Financial Officers using their s114 powers.  This could be under s114(3), insufficient resources to fund likely 
expenditure.  
CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20 sets out that organisations that can only 
be discontinued under statutory prescription shall prepare their accounts on a going concern basis.

However, International Auditing Standard 570 Going Concern, as applied by Practice Note 10: Audit of financial statements of 
public sector bodies in the United Kingdom, still requires auditors to undertake sufficient and appropriate audit procedures to 
consider whether there is a material uncertainty on going concern that requires reporting by management within the financial 
statements, and within the auditor’s report. We are obliged to report on such matters within the section of our audit report 
‘Conclusions relating to Going Concern’.
To do this, the auditor must review management’s assessment of the going concern basis applying IAS1 Presentation of Financia l 
Statements.  

To gain assurance in this area we:
In light of the unprecedented nature of Covid-19, its impact on the funding of public sector entities and uncertainty over the form 
and extent of government support, we sought a documented and detailed consideration to support management’s assertion 
regarding the going concern basis. Our audit procedures to review these included consideration of:

• Current and developing environment;

• Liquidity (operational and funding);

• Mitigating factors;

• Management information and forecasting; 

Due to the impact of Covid-19, we also consulted internally with our risk department over the level of disclosure. 

We reviewed managements 
Going Concern assessment and 
confirm their conclusion that 
the Council remains a Going 
Concern is based on reasonable 
and supportable assumptions. 

We also reviewed managements 
updated Going Concern 
Disclosure and confirmed it 
sufficiently detailed, 
transparent and accurately 
reflects managements 
underlying Going Concern 
assessment. 

The key issues identified as part of our audit were as follows: (cont’d)

Financial Statement Audit (cont’d)

P
age 20



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Financial Statement Audit (cont’d)

Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council 17

Our application of materiality

When establishing our overall audit strategy, we determined a magnitude of uncorrected misstatements that we judged would be material for the financial 
statements as a whole.

Item Thresholds applied

Planning materiality We determined planning materiality to be £1.072m (2018/19: £1.103m), which is 2% of Gross 
Revenue Expenditure.

We consider Gross Revenue Expenditure to be one of the principal considerations for stakeholders in 
assessing the financial performance of the Council

Reporting threshold We agreed with the Audit and Standards Committee that we would report to the Committee all audit 
differences in excess of £54k (2018/19: £55k) 

We also identified the following areas where misstatement at a level lower than our overall materiality level might influence the reader. For these areas we 
developed an audit strategy specific to these areas. The areas identified and audit strategy applied include:

► Remuneration disclosures including any severance payments, exit packages and termination benefits: £1k materiality threshold

► Related party transactions. £1k materiality threshold

► We evaluate any uncorrected misstatements against both the quantitative measures of materiality discussed above and in light of other relevant qualitative 
considerations. 

P
age 21



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Section 4

Value for Money

P
age 22



Ref: EY-000092651-01
Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council 19

Value for Money

We are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. This 
is known as our value for money conclusion.

Proper arrangements are defined by statutory guidance issued by the National Audit Office. They comprise your arrangements to:

► Take informed decisions;

► Deploy resources in a sustainable manner; and

► Work with partners and other third parties.

Proper

arrangements for

securing value

for money

Informed

decision

making

Working with 

partners and 

third parties

Sustainable 

resource 

deployment

We identified a significant risk in relation to these arrangements. The tables below present the 
findings of our work in response to the risks identified and any other significant weaknesses or 
issues to bring to your attention.

We have performed the procedures outlined in our audit plan. 

In addition, subsequent to the issuance of our audit plan we received correspondence from a 
member of the public raising concerns in respect of specifically Block C The Crescent Retail Centre 
and the arrangements with Places for Leisure to operate the Leisure Centre.  We have performed 
procedures to follow up these concerns and found no evidence to suggest a significant risk to our 
value for money conclusion for the 2019-20 financial year.

We did not identify any significant weaknesses in the Council’s arrangements to ensure it took 
properly informed decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes 
for taxpayers and local people. 

On 16 April 2020 the National Audit Office published an update to auditor guidance in relation to 
the 2019/20 Value for Money assessment in the light of Covid-19. This clarified that in 
undertaking the 2019/20 Value for Money assessment auditors should consider NHS bodies’ 
response to Covid-19 only as far as it relates to the 2019-20 financial year; only where clear 
evidence comes to the auditor’s attention of a significant failure in arrangements as a result of 
Covid-19 during the financial year, would it be appropriate to recognise a significant risk in 
relation to the 2019-20 VFM arrangements conclusion. 

P
age 23



Ref: EY-000092651-01
Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council 20

We therefore issued an unqualified value for money conclusion on 09 September 2021.

Significant Risk Conclusion

Securing Financial Resilience (Deploy resources in a 
sustainable manner)

In common with other Local Government entities, the 
Authority is facing significant financial pressures in the 
medium term. The Authority is forecast to have a 
General Fund Balance of £1.65m at 31/03/2020. 

The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) forecasts 
deficits over the next three years which would leave the 
Authority with adequate reserves at the end of the 
2022/23 period. However, the sensitivity analysis 
within the MTFS shows that with reductions in income 
due to the phasing out of the New Homes Bonus and 
the resetting of the NNDR baseline would provide 
budget deficits as follows:

• 2020/21 - £123k 

• 2021/22 - -£46k (surplus) 

• 2022/23 - £326k 

This decreases the General Fund Reserve to £1.25m by 
the end of the 2022/23 period, which is below the level 
of £1.63m considered acceptable by the Authority 
going into 2022/23. Given the uncertainty of the 
funding settlement post 2020/21 and the financial 
pressures set out above, we have considered this to be 
a significant area of focus in forming our value for 
money conclusion.

Our procedures included:

• Reviewing the assumptions applied when preparing the MTFS; 

• Reviewing the process undertaken by the council to monitor progress of the strategic delivery plans;

• Reviewing how the Authority has considered the impact of the Local Government settlement on the 
MTFS;

• Reviewing the adequacy of plans that have been developed to identify future savings and the level of 
reported savings delivered in year;

There is evidence that management are challenging the current budget setting process and the 
assumptions within and assessing plans to mitigate challenges identified.

Based on current forecasts, the Council will have changed their year end position from a forecast deficit to 
a surplus based on changes made in year.

The council use of reserves is predicted to reduce year on year as a result of the action taken to increase 
savings and increase income streams.

There is an increase level of uncertainty around  Government announcements due on local government 
funding plans.  This will be an area of consideration for 2020/21 audit.

Our value for money conclusion was unqualified.

Value for Money (cont’d)

P
age 24



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Section 5

Other Reporting 
Issues

P
age 25



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Whole of Government Accounts

We are required to perform the procedures specified by the National Audit Office on the accuracy of the consolidation pack prepared by the Council for Whole of 
Government Accounts purposes.

The Council is below the specified audit threshold of £500mn. Therefore, we were not required to perform any audit procedures on the consolidation pack

Annual Governance Statement

We are required to consider the completeness of disclosures in the Council’s annual governance statement, identify any incons istencies with the other information of 
which we are aware from our work, and consider whether it is misleading.

We completed this work and did not identify any areas of concern

Report in the Public Interest

We have a duty under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to consider whether, in the public interest, to report on any matter that comes to our attention in 
the course of the audit in order for it to be considered by the Council or brought to the attention of the public.

We did not identify any issues which required us to issue a report in the public interest.

Written Recommendations

We have a duty under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to designate any audit recommendation as one that requires the Council to consider it at a public 
meeting and to decide what action to take in response. 

We did not identify any issues which required us to issue a written recommendation.

Other Reporting Issues

Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council 22

P
age 26



Ref: EY-000092651-01

Objections Received

We did not receive any objections to the 2019/20 financial statements from members of the public. 

Other Powers and Duties

We identified no issues during our audit that required us to use our additional powers under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. 

Independence

We communicated our assessment of independence in our Audit Results Report to the Audit Committee on 24 November 2020. In our professional judgement the 
firm is independent and the objectivity of the audit engagement partner and audit staff has not been compromised within the meaning regulatory and professional 
requirements. 

Control Themes and Observations

As part of our work, we obtained an understanding of internal control sufficient to plan our audit and determine the nature, timing and extent of testing performed. 
Although our audit was not designed to express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control, we are required to communicate to you significant deficiencies in 
internal control identified during our audit. 

Our audit identified one control issue to bring to the attention of the Audit Committee, as follows:

Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council 23

Other Reporting Issues (cont’d)

P
age 27



Ref: EY-000092651-
01

Audit Fees

Appendix A

Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council 24

P
age 28



Ref: EY-000092651-
01

Our fee for 2019/20 is set out in the table below. 

Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council 25

Audit Fees

* As communicated in our Audit Planning Report dated 7 April 2020, we believe that a more sustainable and realistic scale fee for the Audit of Hinckley and Bosworth 
Council, reflecting the increasing regulatory requirements on external audit, and the extent of estimation within the financial statements would be in the region of 
£70,000.

** All audit fee variations are additional to the PSAA scale fee and will be subject to agreement with the s151 Officer, and then PSAA.

*** Scale Fee Variation for 2018/19 relates to additional audit work relating to: GMP and McCloud impact on the pension liability valuation, prior period adjustments 
relating to collection fund creditor / debtor classification, new finance leases and related calculations and disclosure, minimum Revenue Provision calculation, and errors 
identified within the draft accounts.

Description

Final Fee 2019/20

£

Planned Fee 2019/20

£

Scale Fee 2019/20

£

Final Fee 2018/19 

£

Total Audit Fee 38,046* 38,046 38,046 38,046

Scale fee variation

Audit of land and building valuation including use of 

specialists

4,229

Covid-19 – Going Concern and consultation 3,965

Covid-19 – Impact on risk assessment 577

Covid-19 – Additional time incurred in performing the 

audit remotely

2,414

Total Audit Fee ** 11,185 12,600***

Other non-audit services not covered above (Pooling 
of housing capital receipts)

5,000 5,000

P
age 29



26

EY | Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

About EY
EY is a global leader in assurance, tax, transaction
and advisory services. The insights and quality
services we deliver help build trust and confidence
in the capital markets and in economies the world
over. We develop outstanding leaders who team to
deliver on our promises to all of our stakeholders.
In so doing, we play a critical role in building a better 
working world for our people, for our clients and for
our communities.

EY refers to the global organization, and may refer
to one or more, of the member firms of Ernst & Young
Global Limited, each of which is a separate legal entity.
Ernst & Young Global Limited, a UK company limited
by guarantee, does not provide services to clients.
For more information about our organization, please
visit ey.com.

© 2018 EYGM Limited.
All Rights Reserved.

ED None

EY-000070901-01 (UK) 07/18. CSG London.

In line with EY’s commitment to minimise its
impact on the environment, this document has
been printed on paper with a high recycled content.

This material has been prepared for general informational purposes
only and is not intended to be relied upon as accounting, tax, or other 
professional advice. Please refer to your advisors for specific advice.

ey.com

P
age 30



Hinckley and Bosworth 
Borough Council Final
Audit results report 
31 March 2020

September 2021

P
age 31

A
genda Item

 7



2

Private and Confidential September 2021

Dear Audit Committee Members

We are pleased to attach our final audit results report. This report summarises our final audit conclusion in relation to the audit of Hinckley and 
Bosworth Borough Council for 2019/20.

It provides an update to our preliminary audit results report issued 24 November 2020. Updates are in blue font to assist the reader.

Subject to concluding the outstanding matters listed in our report, we confirm that we expect to issue an unqualified audit opinion on the financial 
statements in the form at Section 3. 

This report is intended solely for the use of the Audit Committee, other members of the Authority, and senior management. It should not be used 
for any other purpose or given to any other party without obtaining our written consent.

We would like to thank your staff for their help during the engagement.

Yours faithfully 

Helen Henshaw

Associate Partner

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

Encl

P
age 32



3

Contents

Executive 
Summary01 0502 Areas of 

Audit Focus 03 Audit Report 04

Other 
reporting 
issues

07

Audit 
Differences

Appendices
Assessment of 
Control 
Environment

08 Data 
Analytics

09 Independence 10

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) have issued a ‘Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies’. It is available from the Chief Executive of each audited body and via the PSAA website (www.psaa.co.uk). 
This Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and 
what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas.

The ‘Terms of Appointment (updated April 2018)’ issued by PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the National Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and 
statute, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.

This Audit Results Report is prepared in the context of the Statement of responsibilities. It is addressed to the Members of the audited body, and is prepared for their sole use. We, as appointed auditor, take no responsibility to 
any third party.

Our Complaints Procedure – If at any time you would like to discuss with us how our service to you could be improved, or if you are dissatisfied with the service you are receiving, you may take the issue up with your usual partner 
or director contact. If you prefer an alternative route, please contact Hywel Ball, our Managing Partner, 1 More London Place, London SE1 2AF. We undertake to look into any complaint carefully and promptly and to do all we can 
to explain the position to you. Should you remain dissatisfied with any aspect of our service, you may of course take matters up with our professional institute. We can provide further information on how you may contact our 
professional institute.

06

Value for 
Money

V
F
M

P
age 33

http://www.psaa.co.uk/


4

Executive Summary01

P
age 34



5

Executive Summary

Scope update

In our audit planning report tabled at the 20 May 2020 Audit Committee meeting, we provided you with an overview of our audit scope and approach for the audit of 
the financial statements. We carried out our audit in accordance with this plan, with the following exceptions:

Changes to reporting timescales

As a result of COVID-19, new regulations, the Accounts and Audit (Coronavirus) (Amendment) Regulations 2020 No. 404, have been published and came into force on 
30 April 2020. This announced a change to publication date for final, audited accounts from 31 July to 30 November 2020 for all relevant authorities.

Changes to our risk assessment as a result of Covid-19

• Valuation of Property Plant and Equipment - The Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS), the body setting the standards for property valuations, has issued 
guidance to valuers highlighting that the uncertain impact of Covid-19 on markets might cause a valuer to conclude that there is a material uncertainty. Caveats 
around this material uncertainty have been included in the year-end valuation reports produced by the Authority’s external valuer. We consider that the material 
uncertainties disclosed by the valuer gave rise to an additional risk relating to disclosures on the valuation of property, plant and equipment. 

• Disclosures on Going Concern – Financial plans for 2020/21 and medium term financial plans will need revision for Covid-19. We considered the unpredictability of 
the current environment gave rise to a risk that the Local Authority would not appropriately disclose the key factors relating to going concern, underpinned by 
managements assessment with particular reference to Covid-19 and the Local Authority’s actual year end financial position and performance. 

• Events after the balance sheet date – We identified an increased risk that further events after the balance sheet date concerning the current Covid-19 pandemic will
need to be disclosed. The amount of detail required in the disclosure needed to reflect the specific circumstances of the Local Authority.

• Adoption of IFRS16 – The adoption of IFRS 16 by CIPFA/LASAAC as the basis for preparation of Local Authority Financial Statements has been deferred until 1 April 
2021.  The Authority will therefore no longer be required to undertake an impact assessment, and disclosure of the impact of the standard in the financial 
statements does not now need to be financially quantified in 2019/20. We therefore no longer consider this to be an area of audit focus for 2019/20.

Changes in materiality 

In our Audit Committee Planning Report, we communicated that our audit procedures would be performed using a materiality of £1.1m, with performance materiality, 
at 75% of overall materiality, of £828k, and a threshold for reporting misstatements of £55k. We have considered whether any change to our materiality is required in 
light of Covid-19. Following this consideration we remain satisfied that the basis for planning materiality, performance materiality and our audit threshold for reporting 
differences reported to you in our Audit Planning Report remain appropriate. 

We updated our planning materiality assessment using the draft accounts and have also reconsidered our risk assessment. Based on our materiality measure of gross 
expenditure on provision of services, we have updated our overall materiality assessment to £1.072m (Audit Planning Report — £1.1m). This results in updated 
performance materiality, at 75% of overall materiality, of £804k, and an updated threshold for reporting misstatements of £54k

P
age 35



6

Executive Summary

Scope update

Information Produced by the Entity (IPE): We identified an increased risk around the completeness, accuracy, and appropriateness of information produced by the 
entity due to the inability of the audit team to verify original documents or re-run reports on-site from the Authority’s systems. We undertook the following to address 
this risk:

• Used the screen sharing function of Microsoft Teams to evidence re-running of reports used to generate the IPE we audited; and

• Agree IPE to scanned documents or other system screenshots.

Additional EY consultation requirements concerning the impact on auditor reports because of Covid-19. The changes to audit risks, audit approach and auditor 
reporting requirements changed the level of work we needed to perform. We have set out the impact on our audit fee on page 37.

P
age 36



7

Executive Summary

Audit differences

There are unadjusted audit differences arising from our audit. These are immaterial individually and in aggregate, and are set out in section 4.

Management has made a number of adjustments to the draft financial statements based on our feedback and findings.  The most significant of these are reported in 
section 4. 

Status of the audit

We have substantially completed our audit of Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council financial statements for the Year ended 31st March 2020 and have performed the 
procedures outlined in our Audit planning report. Subject to the satisfactory completion of the outstanding matters set out in Appendix B, we expected to issue an 
unqualified opinion on the Authority’s financial statements in the form which appears at Section 3. 

We expect to issue the audit certificate at the same time as the audit opinion

Objections

We have received no objections to the 2019/20 accounts from members of the public. 

Areas of audit focus

Our Audit Planning Report identified key areas of focus for our audit of Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council’s financial statements. This report sets out our 
observations and conclusions, including our views on areas which might be conservative, and where there is potential risk and exposure . We summarise our 
consideration of these matters, and any others identified, in the "Key Audit Issues" section of this report.

We ask you to review these and any other matters in this report to ensure:

• There are no other considerations or matters that could have an  impact on these issues

• You agree with the resolution of the issue

• There are no other significant issues to be considered.

There are no matters, apart from those reported by management or disclosed in this report, which we believe should be brought to the attention of the Audit and 
Standards Committee.

P
age 37



8

Executive Summary

Control observations

As part of our audit of the financial statements, we obtained an understanding of internal control sufficient to plan our audit and determine the nature, timing and 
extent of testing performed. As we have adopted a fully substantive approach, we have therefore not tested the operation of controls.

Although our audit was not designed to express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control we are required to communicate to you significant deficiencies in 
internal control.  We have not identified any significant deficiencies in the design or operation of an internal control that might result in a material misstatement in your 
financial statements and which is unknown to you.  However, we have set out some observations in section 7 of this report.  

Value for money

We have considered your arrangements to take informed decisions; deploy resources in a sustainable manner; and work with partners and other third parties. In our 
Audit Planning Report we identified the following significant risk: 

Securing Financial Resilience: The Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) shows that there is a gap between funding and expenditure, requiring the Council 
to utilise its reserves to meet its planned expenditure.

We have no matters to report about your arrangements to secure economy efficiency and effectiveness in your use of resources. 

Other reporting issues

We have reviewed the information presented in the Annual Governance Statement for consistency with our knowledge of the Authority. We have no matters to report as 
a result of this work. 

We have not yet performed the procedures required by the National Audit Office (NAO) on the Whole of Government Accounts submission. We will report any matters 
arising to the Audit Committee. 

We have no other matters to report. 

Independence

Please refer to Section 9 for our update on Independence. 

P
age 38



9

Areas of Audit Focus02

P
age 39



10

Areas of Audit Focus

Significant risk
What is the risk?

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that revenue may be misstated due to improper revenue recognition. In the 
public sector, this requirement is modified by Practice Note 10 issued by the Financial Reporting Council, which states 
that auditors should also consider the risk that material misstatements may occur by the manipulation of expenditure 
recognition. 

As the Council is more focussed on its financial position over the medium term we do not consider there to be a 
heightened risk for the Council’s standard income and expenditure streams except for the capitalisation of 
expenditure on Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) given the extent of the Council’s capital programme. 

Risk of fraud in revenue 
and expenditure 
recognition –
Inappropriate 
capitalisation of 
expenditure

What did we do?

In order to address this risk we have carried out a range of procedures including:

• Reviewed the appropriateness of expenditure recognition and capitalisation accounting policies; 

• Used our data analytics tool to identify and test the appropriateness of journal entries recorded 
in the general ledger and other adjustments made in the preparation of the financial statement, 
specifically those that move expenditure to PPE balance sheet general ledger codes; and

• Performed sample testing on additions to PPE to ensure that they have been correctly classified 
as capital and included at the correct value to identify any revenue items that have been 
inappropriately capitalised. 

What are our conclusions?

We tested a sample of additions to Property, Plant and Equipment 
in the year.  No issues were noted in respect of inappropriate 
capitalisation of expenditure.  

We have used our data analytics tools to examine journal entries 
moving expenditure from the comprehensive income and 
expenditure statement to fixed asset codes on the balance sheet.

Our audit work has not identified any material issues or unusual 
transactions to indicate any misreporting of the Authority’s 
financial position.

What judgements are we focused on?

The main judgement which we focus on in relation to this significant risk is the assessment 
undertaken to determine whether capitalised expenditure meets the requirements of the 
associated accounting standard.

P
age 40



11

Areas of Audit Focus

Significant risk

What is the risk?

The financial statements as a whole are not free of material misstatements whether caused by fraud or error.

As identified in ISA (UK) 240, management is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of its ability to 
manipulate accounting records directly or indirectly and prepare fraudulent financial statements by overriding 
controls that otherwise appear to be operating effectively. We identify and respond to this fraud risk on every audit 
engagement.

Misstatements due to 
fraud or error

What did we do?

In order to address this risk we have carried out a range of procedures including:

• Identified fraud risks during the planning stages.

• Inquired of management about risks of fraud and the controls put in place to address those 
risks.

• Understood the oversight given by those charged with governance of management’s processes 
over fraud.

• Considered the effectiveness of management’s controls designed to address the risk of fraud.

• Determined an appropriate strategy to address those identified risks of fraud.

• Performed mandatory procedures regardless of specifically identified fraud risks, including:

• testing of journal entries and other adjustments in the preparation of the financial 
statements;

• assessing accounting estimates for evidence of management bias; and

• evaluating the business rationale for significant unusual transactions.

What are our conclusions?

We have not identified any material weaknesses in controls or 
evidence of material management override.

We have not identified any instances of inappropriate judgements 
being applied.

We did not identify any transactions during our audit which 
appeared unusual or outside of the Authority’s normal course of 
business.

No issues were identified.

P
age 41



12

Areas of Audit Focus

Significant risk
What is the risk?

The fair value of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) represents a significant balances in the entity’s accounts and is
subject to valuation changes, impairment reviews and depreciation charges. Management is required to make material
judgemental inputs and apply estimation techniques to calculate the year-end balances recorded in the balance sheet.

The Authority will engage an external expert valuer who will apply a number of complex assumptions to these assets.
Annually assets are assessed to identify whether there is any indication of impairment. As the Authority’s asset base
is significant, and the outputs from the valuer are subject to estimation, there is a risk fixed assets may be under/
overstated. ISAs (UK and Ireland) 500 and 540 require us to undertake procedures on the use of management experts
and the assumptions underlying fair value estimates.

Many of the property valuations involve future yields within the calculation. Due to the impact of Covid 19 there is
greater uncertainty around the future yields obtainable in relation to properties.

What judgements are we focused on?

We focused on the complex judgements provided by the specialist valuer in their 
determination of asset valuations.

Valuation and impairment 
of Property, Plant and 
Equipment 

What did we do?

• Considered the work performed by the external valuer, including the adequacy of the 
scope of the work performed, their professional capabilities and the results of their work;

• Sample tested key asset information used by the valuers in performing their valuation 
(e.g. floor plans to support valuations based on price per square metre);

• Considered the annual cycle of valuations to ensure that assets have been valued within 
a 5 year rolling programme as required by the Code. We also considered if there are any 
specific changes to assets that have occurred and that these have been communicated 
to the valuer;

• Reviewed assets not subject to valuation in 2019/20 to confirm that the remaining asset 
base is not materially misstated;

• Considered changes to useful economic lives as a result of the most recent valuation; 

• Tested accounting entries have been correctly processed in the financial statements; 
and

• Engaged EY Real Estates team to perform a review of the valuer’s estimation methods 
and to review the valuation of a sample of assets.

What are our conclusions?

We considered the professional capabilities and experience of the valuer, 
no issues were noted.

We sample tested key asset information and no issues were noted.

We considered the annual cycle of valuations. No issues were noted.

Assets not subject to valuation 2019/20 were only those in categories 
which do not require revaluation. No issues were noted.

We considered economic lives and tested accounting entries had been 
posted correctly – no issues were noted.

We engaged EY Real Estates to perform a review of assets. We identified 
a number of assets which fell outside of EY Real Estate’s acceptable 
range. The net impact was not material – PPE understated by £64k.

We identified one asset under construction (Ambion Court) which was 
incorrectly revalued in year. The impact was not material – PPE (AUC) 
understated by £237k.

P
age 42



13

Areas of Audit Focus

Other areas of audit focus

Pension Liability Valuation

The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require extensive disclosures within the financial statements regarding membership of the Local 
Government Pension Scheme administered by Leicestershire County Council. 

The information disclosed is based on the IAS 19 report issued to the Council by the actuaries to the County Council. Accounting for these schemes involves significant 
estimation and judgement and therefore management engages an actuary to undertake the calculations on their behalf. ISAs (UK and Ireland) 500 and 540 require us 
to undertake procedures on the use of management experts and the assumptions underlying fair value estimates.

At 31 March 2020 the net liability totals £43.5m.

Management obtained revised actuarial reports to reflect the recent McCloud remedy consultation which resulted in a revised l iability figure of £35m (a reduction of 
£243k).  This has been adjusted for in the final financial statements.

We have recently received an assurance letter from the auditors of the Leicestershire Pension Fund on the results of their procedures.  This letter alerts us to the fact 
that the auditors of the Fund will be including an Emphasis of Matter in their audit opinion in respect of Material Uncertainty clauses included in a number of property 
fund valuation reports in which the Pension fund invests. Having undertaken procedures to follow up on this, there is no material impact for Hinckley and Bosworth 
Borough Council’s financial statements.

We completed our procedures and no material issues were identified.

We identified minor errors, below our materiality threshold, in the pension fund figures:
- Benefits paid was understated by £186k (No net impact on pension liability)
- Return on pension assets was understated by £67k (Dr net pension liability £67k, Cr OCI £67k)

P
age 43



14

Areas of Audit Focus

Other areas of audit focus

National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR) Appeals Provision

The Council calculates an NNDR (business rates) appeals provision in relation to appeals made by businesses which believe that the NNDR that they have paid in 
previous years was inflated due to an unreasonably high RV (Rateable value). The calculation involves a significant amount of estimation uncertainty and typically 
includes the use of an expert. As such, the value of the NNDR appeals provision is identified as an area which has an increased risk of material misstatement.

We have:

• Reviewed the methodology behind the calculation for the NNDR appeals provision, testing the assumptions used and the calculations applied;

• Assessed the data used in the calculation – agreeing the values and attesting the completeness of appeals by agreeing to third party source information; and

• Enquired of management’s specialist – obtain an understanding of their input into their process, their qualifications and expertise. 

We completed our procedures and no issues were identified.

P
age 44



15

Areas of Audit Focus

Other areas of audit focus

Going Concern Disclosures

We consider the  unpredictability of the current environment to give rise to a risk that the Council will not appropriately disclose the key factors relating to going 
concern, underpinned by managements assessment with particular reference to Covid-19. 

In order to address this risk we carried out the following procedures:

• Obtained managements going concern assessment and review for any evidence of bias and consistency with the accounts;

• Reviewed the financial modelling and forecasts prepared by the Council. This will consider key assumptions, stress testing applied to  those assumptions and consider 
the risk to cashflow up to the date of 12 months after the signing date of the accounts and opinion;

• Ensured that an appropriate going concern disclosure has been made within the financial statements;

• Reviewed the Council’s approach to identifying and disclosing events after the balance sheet date; and

• Considered the impact on our audit report and complied with EY consultation requirements.

We have completed our work in this area. Management’s disclosures have been enhanced in relation to going concern. We have not identified any issues with the 
Council’s use of the going concern basis of accounting.

P
age 45



16

Audit Report03

P
age 46



17

Audit Report

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing 
(UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards 
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial 
statements section of our report below. We are independent of the authority in 
accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard and the 
Comptroller and Auditor General’s (C&AG) AGN01, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that Head of Finance’s 
use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial 
statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material 
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, 
may cast significant doubt on the authority’s ability to continue as a going 
concern for a period of 12 months from when the financial statements are 
authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Head of Finance with respect to 
going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report.  However, 
because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not 
a guarantee as to the authority’s ability to continue as a going concern.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF HINCKLEY AND 
BOSWORTH BOROUGH COUNCIL

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Hinckley and Bosworth Borough 
Council for the year ended 31 March 2020 under the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014. The financial statements comprise the:

• Movement in Reserves Statement, 
• Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, 
• Balance Sheet, 
• Cash Flow Statement
• and the related notes 1 to 40.
• Housing Revenue Statement and the related notes 1 to 10
• Collection Fund and the related notes 11 to 15

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is 
applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20.

In our opinion the financial statements:
• give a true and fair view of the financial position of Hinckley and Bosworth 
Borough Council as at 31 March 2020 and of its expenditure and income for 
the year then ended; and
• have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20.

Our opinion on the financial statements (Example)

Draft audit report 

P
age 47



18

Audit Report

• we make written recommendations to the audited body under Section 24 of the 
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014; 
• we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is 
contrary to law under Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014;
• we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014;
• we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit 
and Accountability Act 2014;
• we are not satisfied that the Authority has made proper arrangements for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the 
year ended 31 March 2020.

We have nothing to report in these respects 

Responsibility of the Head of Finance 

As explained more fully in the Statement of the Head of Finance’s Responsibilities 
set out on page 20, the Head of Finance is responsible for the preparation of the 
Statement of Accounts, which includes the financial statements, in accordance 
with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20, and for being satisfied 
that they give a true and fair view and for such internal control as the directors 
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Head of Finance is responsible for 
assessing the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless the Authority either intends to cease operations, or have no 
realistic alternative but to do so.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Audited 
Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement 2019/20, other 
than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.  The Head of 
Finance is responsible for the other information contained within the Audited 
Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement 2019/20.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information 
and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies 
or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether 
there is a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, 
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Matters on which we report by exception

We report to you if:
• in our opinion the annual governance statement is misleading or inconsistent 
with other information forthcoming from the audit or our knowledge of the 
Council;
• we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit 
and Accountability Act 2014;

Our opinion on the financial statements (Example)

Draft audit report 

P
age 48



19

Audit Report

O Local Government Finance Act 1988 (as amended by the Local Government 
Finance Act 1992) 
O Local Government Act 2003, 
O The Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) Regulations 
2003 as amended in 2018 and 2020, 
O The Local Government Finance Act 2012 
O The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, and
O The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.

In addition, the Authority has to comply with laws and regulations in the areas of 
anti-bribery and corruption, data protection, employment Legislation, tax 
Legislation, general power of competence, procurement and health & safety. 

• We understood how Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council is complying with 
those frameworks by understanding the incentive, opportunities and motives for 
non-compliance, including inquiring of management, head of internal audit, those 
charged with governance and obtaining and reading documentation relating to 
the procedures in place to identify, evaluate and comply with laws and 
regulations, and whether they are aware of instances of non-compliance. We 
corroborated this through our reading of the Authority’s committee minutes, 
through enquiry of employees to confirm Council policies, and through the 
inspection of employee handbooks and other information. Based on this 
understanding we designed our audit procedures to identify non-compliance with 
such laws and regulations. Our procedures had a focus on compliance with the 
accounting framework through obtaining sufficient audit evidence in line with the 
level of risk identified and with relevant legislation.

The Authority is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to 
secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure 
proper stewardship and governance, and to review regularly the adequacy and 
effectiveness of these arrangements. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statements.  

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and 
regulations. We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined 
above, to detect irregularities, including fraud. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for 
example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion. The 
extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, 
including fraud is detailed below. However, the primary responsibility for the 
prevention and detection of fraud rests with both those charged with 
governance of the entity and management. 

• We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that 
are applicable to the Authority and determined that the most significant are: 
O Local Government Act 1972, 
O Local Government and Housing Act 1989 (England and Wales) 

Our opinion on the financial statements (Example)

Draft audit report 

P
age 49



20

Audit Report

The Comptroller and Auditor General determined these criteria as those 
necessary for us to consider under the Code of Audit Practice in satisfying 
ourselves whether Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council put in place proper 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources for the year ended 31 March 2020.

We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our 
risk assessment, we undertook such work as we considered necessary to form a 
view on whether, in all significant respects, Hinckley and Bosworth Borough 
Council had put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources.

We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 
2014 to satisfy ourselves that the Authority has made proper arrangements for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 

We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of 
the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness 
in its use of resources are operating effectively. 

Certificate

We certify that we have completed the audit of the accounts of Hinckley and 
Bosworth Borough Council in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit 
and Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice issued by the 
National Audit Office.

• We assessed the susceptibility of the Authority’s financial statements to 
material misstatement, including how fraud might occur by understanding the 
potential incentives and pressures for management to manipulate the 
financial statements, and performed procedures to understand the areas in 
which this would most likely arise. Based on our risk assessment procedures, 
we identified inappropriate capitalisation of revenue expenditure and 
management override of controls to be our fraud risks. 

• To address our fraud risk of inappropriate capitalisation of revenue 
expenditure we tested the Authority’s capitalised expenditure to ensure the 
capitalisation criteria were properly met and the expenditure was genuine. 

• To address our fraud risk of management override of controls, we tested 
specific journal entries identified by applying risk criteria to the entire 
population of journals. For each journal selected, we tested specific 
transactions back to source documentation to confirm that the journals were 
authorised and accounted for appropriately. 

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial 
statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at 
https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.  This description forms part 
of our auditor’s report.

Scope of the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in the use of resources

We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, 
having regard to the guidance on the specified reporting criteria issued by the 
Comptroller and Auditor General (C&AG) in April 2021, as to whether the 
Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council had proper arrangements for financial 
sustainability, governance and improving economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness. 

Our opinion on the financial statements (Example)

Draft audit report 

P
age 50



21

Audit Report

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the members of Hinckley and Bosworth Borough 
Council, as a body,  in accordance with Part 5 of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 and for no other purpose, as set out in paragraph 43 
of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published 
by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. To the fullest extent permitted 
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the 
Authority and the Authority’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this 
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Helen Henshaw (Key Audit Partner)
Ernst & Young LLP (Local Auditor)
Birmingham
09 September 2021

Our opinion on the financial statements (Example)

Draft audit report 

P
age 51



22

Audit Differences04

P
age 52



23

Audit Differences

In the normal course of any audit, we identify misstatements between amounts we believe should be recorded in the financial statements and the disclosures and 
amounts actually recorded. These differences are classified as “known” or “judgemental”. Known differences represent items that can be accurately quantified and 
relate to a definite set of facts or circumstances. Judgemental differences generally involve estimation and relate to facts or circumstances that are uncertain or open to 
interpretation. 

We highlight the following misstatements greater than £54k which have been corrected by management that were identified during the course of our audit:

Corrected misstatements:
• Direct debit taken on 1 April 2020 incorrectly recorded within 2019/20 financial year. Debtors understated by £524k, Cash overstated by £524k

• Payment made to inland revenue on 22 April 2020 incorrectly recorded within 2019/20 financial year. Creditors understated by £242k, Cash understated by 
£242k.

• Adjustment to net pension liability due to acquisition of updated actuary report to include impact of McCloud judgement. Adjustment: £243k reduction to net 
pension liability, £243k uplift to Other Comprehensive Income.

• Section 106 creditor incorrectly recognised. Adjustment: £86k reduction to debtors, £86k reduction to payables.

Corrected disclosure items:

A number of disclosure errors were identified and are being amended by management:

• Amendment to future lease payments in respect of Hinckley Hub

• Amendment to AGS to include impacts of Covid-19

• Amendment to AGS conclusion

• Amendment to include prior year external audit scale fee variation

• Amendment to provisions disclosure in relation to classification of increase/decrease and amounts used in year

• Amendment to accounting policies disclosure in relation to updated NNDR appeals provision estimate methodology applied.

• Amendments to the narrative report to ensure figures are consistent with the accounts

Uncorrected misstatements are shown on the following page

Summary of adjusted differences

P
age 53



24

Audit Differences

In addition we highlight the following misstatements to the financial statements and/or disclosures which were not corrected by management. We request that these 
uncorrected misstatements be corrected or a rationale as to why they are not corrected be considered and approved by the Audit and Standards Committee and 
provided within the Letter of Representation:

Summary of unadjusted differences

Uncorrected misstatements 

31 March 2020 (£000) 

Effect on the

current period:

Balance Sheet

(Decrease)/Increase

Comprehensive 

income and 

expenditure 

statement

Debit/(Credit)

Assets
current Debit/

(Credit)

Assets non
current Debit/

(Credit)

Equity Debit/
(Credit)

Liabilities non-
current Debit/

(Credit)

Errors

Known differences:

• Pension Fund benefits paid overstated 186,000 (Pen. Ass)

(186,000) (Pen. Lia)

• MRP – Old regime debt calculation incorrect. Cumulative MRP 
undercharge. General Fund / Capital Adjustment Account

117,000 (Gen Fund)

(117,000) (CAA)

• Pension Fund variance between forecast and actual asset return (67,000) (OCI*) 67,000

• Ambion Court (AUC) incorrectly included as part of PPE Valuations (237,000) (I+E) 237,000

Projected differences:

• Assurance over the existence of debtors could not be verified. 236,000 (I+E) (236,000)

Judgemental differences:

• Variances in PPE Valuation – outside of EYRE acceptable range 45,000 (OCI*)

(109,000) (I+E) 64,000

Balance sheet totals (236,000) 301,000 0 67,000

Income effect of uncorrected misstatements (22,000) (OCI*)

(110,000) (I+E)

There are no amounts that we identified that are individually or in aggregate material to the presentation and disclosures of the consolidated financial statements for 
the year ended 31 March 2020

*Note: Impact is on OCI (Reduction to Revaluation Reserve)

P
age 54



25

Value for Money05 01

P
age 55



26

Value for Money

Background

We are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ to secure 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources. This is known as our value for money 
conclusion. 

For 2019/20 this is based on the overall evaluation criterion:

“In all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed 
decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local 
people”

Proper arrangements are defined by statutory guidance issued by the National Audit Office. They comprise 
your arrangements to:

▪ Take informed decisions;
▪ Deploy resources in a sustainable manner; and
▪ Work with partners and other third parties.

In considering your proper arrangements, we will draw on the requirements of the CIPFA/SOLACE 
framework for local government to ensure that our assessment is made against a framework that you are 
already required to have in place and to report on through documents such as your annual governance 
statement.

V
F
M

Proper arrangements for 
securing value for money  

Informed 
decision making 

Working with 
partners and 
third parties

Sustainable 
resource 

deployment

We identified one significant risk around these arrangements. The table following presents our findings in response to the risks in our Audit Planning Report and any 
other significant weaknesses or issues we want to bring to your attention.

We have identified no issues in the Council’s arrangements for securing value for money

Overall conclusion

On 16 April 2020 the National Audit Office published an update to auditor guidance in relation to the 2019/20 Value for Money assessment in the light of covid-19. 

This clarified that in undertaking the 2019/20 Value for Money assessment auditors should consider Local Authorities’ response to Covid-19 only as far as it relates to 
the 2019-20 financial year; only where clear evidence comes to the auditor’s attention of a significant failure in arrangements as a result of Covid-19 during the financial 
year, would it be appropriate to recognise a significant risk in relation to the 2019-20 VFM arrangements conclusion. 

Impact of covid-19 on our Value for Money assessment

P
age 56



27

Value for Money 

Value for Money Risks

V
F
M

What is the significant value for money risk?
What arrangements did the risk 
affect?

What are our findings?

Securing financial resilience

In common with other Local Government entities, the Authority is 
facing significant financial pressures in the medium term.

The Authority is forecast to have a General Fund Balance of £1.65m at 
31/03/2020. 

The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) forecasts deficits over the 
next three years which would leave the Authority with adequate 
reserves at the end of the 2022/23 period. However, the sensitivity 
analysis within the MTFS shows that with reductions in income due to 
the phasing out of the New Homes Bonus and the resetting of the NNDR 
baseline would provide budget deficits as follows:

• 2020/21 - £123k

• 2021/22 - -£46k (surplus)

• 2022/23 - £326k

This decreases the General Fund Reserve to £1.25m by the end of the 
2022/23 period, which is below the level of £1.63m considered 
acceptable by the Authority going into 2022/23. 

Given the uncertainty of the funding settlement post 2020/21 and the 
financial pressures set out above, we have considered this to be a 
significant area of focus in forming our value for money conclusion. 

Deploy resources in a sustainable 
manner.

Planning finances effectively to 
support the sustainable delivery of 
strategic priorities and maintain 
statutory functions

We have received correspondence from a member of the 
public on 11/11/2020, expressing concerns over the 
Council’s arrangements in respect of the Council’s 
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness on its use of resources.

Under the Code of Audit Practice (paragraph 5.3) issued 
by the National Audit Office, auditors have an obligation 
to consider information received. Auditors are required 
to consider whether the matter or information provided 
needs investigation and action under the additional 
powers and duties set out at paragraph 5.1 of the Code  
or whether it can be considered more effectively within 
planned work programmes. 

We have followed up the concerns expressed. We have 
not identified any additional significant risks to the 
Council’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency 
and effectiveness in the 2019-20 year under audit in 
relation to this.

Whilst the MTFS presents some financial challenges for 
the Authority over the medium term, Hinckley has a good 
track record of meeting and achieving savings. Our value 
for money conclusion is unqualified.

We are only required to determine whether there are any risks that we consider significant within the Code of Audit Practice, where risk is defined as:

“A matter is significant if, in the auditor’s professional view, it is reasonable to conclude that the matter would be of interest to the audited body or the wider public”

Our risk assessment supports the planning of enough work to deliver a safe conclusion on your arrangements to secure value for money, and enables us to determine the 
nature and extent of any further work needed. If we do not identify a significant risk we do not need to carry out further work.

The table below presents the findings of our work in response to the risks areas in our Audit Planning Report. 

P
age 57



28

Other reporting issues06 01

P
age 58



29

Consistency of other information published with the financial statements, including the Annual Governance Statement

We must give an opinion on the consistency of the financial and non-financial information in the 2019-20 Statement of Accounts for Hinckley and Bosworth Borough 
Council with the audited financial statements

We must also review the Annual Governance Statement for completeness of disclosures, consistency with other information from our work, and whether it complies 
with relevant guidance. 

Financial information in the 2019-20 Statement of Accounts for Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council and published with the financial statements was consistent 
with the audited financial statements (pending audit adjustments to be made by management).

We have reviewed the Annual Governance Statement and can confirm it is consistent with other information from our audit of the financial statements and we have no 
other matters to report.

Other reporting issues

Other reporting issues

Whole of Government Accounts

Alongside our work on the financial statements, we also review and report to the National Audit Office on your Whole of Government Accounts return. The extent of 
our review, and the nature of our report, is specified by the National Audit Office.

We are currently concluding our work in this area and will report any matters arising to the Audit Committee. 

P
age 59



30

Other reporting issues

Other reporting issues

Other matters

As required by ISA (UK&I) 260 and other ISAs specifying communication requirements, we must tell you significant findings from the audit and other matters if they 
are significant to your oversight of the [Authority]’s financial reporting process. They include the following:

• Significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures;
• Any significant difficulties encountered during the audit;
• Any significant matters arising from the audit that were discussed with management;
• Written representations we have requested;
• Expected modifications to the audit report;
• Any other matters significant to overseeing the financial reporting process;
• Findings and issues around the opening balance on initial audits (if applicable);
• Related parties;
• External confirmations;
• Going concern;
• Consideration of laws and regulations; and
• Group audits

No significant findings have been identified in relation to any of the above matters

P
age 60



31

Assessment of Control 
Environment

07

P
age 61



32

Assessment of Control Environment

It is the responsibility of the Authority to develop and implement systems of internal financial control and to put in place proper arrangements to monitor their adequacy 
and effectiveness in practice. Our responsibility as your auditor is to consider whether the Authority has put adequate arrangements in place to satisfy itself that the 
systems of internal financial control are both adequate and effective in practice. 

As part of our audit of the financial statements, we obtained an understanding of internal control sufficient to plan our audit and determine the nature, timing and extent of 
testing performed. As we have adopted a fully substantive approach, we have therefore not tested the operation of controls.

Although our audit was not designed to express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control we are required to communicate to you significant deficiencies in internal 
control.

We considered whether circumstances arising from COVID-19 resulted in a change to the overall control environment of effectiveness of internal controls, for example due 
to significant staff absence or limitations as a result of working remotely. We identified no issues which we wish to bring to your attention.

We have not identified any significant deficiencies in the design or operation of an internal control that might result in a material misstatement in your financial statements 
of which you are not aware. However, wish to report the following area where improvements could be made to the operation or design of controls.

Financial controls

Status of previous year’s recommendations

Description Update

No issues identified. n/a

Current year recommendations

Description Management’s response

We noted that the revaluation reserve per the financial statements does not agree to the 
sum of individual fixed asset revaluation reserves per the fixed asset register. The value per 
the financial statements is £207k greater than as per the fixed asset register.

Management are working to identify the cause of the error. The variance is 
not material to the financial statements. Management are looking to make 
the amendment within the 2020/21 financial year.

P
age 62



33

Data Analytics08

P
age 63



Page 34

Use of Data Analytics in the Audit

Data analytics
We used our data analysers to enable us to capture entire populations of your financial data. These 
analysers:

• Help identify specific exceptions and anomalies which can then be the focus of our substantive 
audit tests; and 

• Give greater likelihood of identifying errors than traditional, random sampling techniques.

In 2019/20, our use of these analysers in the Authority’s audit included testing journal entries and 
employee expenses, to identify and focus our testing on those entries we deem to have the highest 
inherent risk to the audit.

We capture the data through our formal data requests and the data transfer takes place on a 
secured EY website. These are in line with our EY data protection policies which are designed to 
protect the confidentiality, integrity and availability of business and personal information. 

Journal Entry Analysis 
We obtain downloads of all financial ledger transactions posted in the year. We perform 
completeness analysis over the data, reconciling the sum of transactions to the movement in the 
trial balances and financial statements to ensure we have captured all data. Our analysers then 
review and sort transactions, allowing us to more effectively identify and test journals that we 
consider to be higher risk, as identified in our audit planning report. 

Payroll Analysis 
We also use our analysers in our payroll testing. We obtain all payroll transactions posted in the year 
from the payroll system and perform completeness analysis over the data, including reconciling the 
total amount to the General Ledger trial balance. We then analyse the data against a number of 
specifically designed procedures. These include analysis of payroll costs by month to identify any 
variances from established expectations, as well as more detailed transactional interrogation.

Analytics Driven Audit 

P
age 64



Page 35

Journal Entry Data Insights 
The graphic outlined below summarises the journal population for 2019/20. We review journals by certain risk based criteria to focus on 
higher risk transactions, such as journals posted manually by management, those posted around the year-end, those with unusual debit and 
credit relationships, and those posted by individuals we would not expect to be entering transactions. 

The purpose of this approach is to provide a more effective, risk focused approach to auditing journal entries, minimising the burden of 
compliance on management by minimising randomly selected samples.

Data Analytics

P
age 65



Journal Entry Testing

What is the risk?

In line with ISA 240 we are required to test the appropriateness of 
journal entries recorded in the general ledger and other 
adjustments made in the preparation of the financial statements. 

What judgements are we focused on?

Using our analysers we are able to take a risk based approach to 
identify journals with a higher risk of management override, as 
outlined in our audit planning report. 

Data Analytics

What are our conclusions?

We isolated a sub set of journals for further investigation and obtained supporting evidence to verify the posting of these transactions and 
concluded that they were appropriately stated.

Journal entry data criteria — 31 March 2020

What did we do?

We obtained general ledger 
journal data for the period 
and have used our analysers 
to identify characteristics 
typically associated with 
inappropriate journal entries 
or adjustments, and journals 
entries that are subject to a 
higher risk of management 
override. 

We then performed tests on 
the journals identified to 
determine if they were 
appropriate and reasonable. 

P
age 66



37

Independence09

P
age 67



38

Independence

Confirmation and analysis of Audit fees

We confirm there are no changes in our assessment of independence since 
our confirmation in our audit planning board report dated 1 May 2020. 

We complied with the APB Ethical Standards. In our professional 
judgement the firm is independent and the objectivity of the audit 
engagement partner and audit staff has not been compromised within the 
meaning of regulatory and professional requirements.

We consider that our independence in this context is a matter that should 
be reviewed by both you and ourselves. It is therefore important that you 
consider the facts of which you are aware and come to a view. If you wish 
to discuss any matters concerning our independence, we will be pleased to 
do so at the forthcoming meeting of the Audit Committee on 24 November 
2020.

We confirm that to date we have not undertaken non-audit work outside of 
the Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies as issued 
by the Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd.

As part of our reporting on our independence, we set out below a summary of the fees 
you have paid us in the year ended 31 March 2020.

We confirm that we have not undertaken non-audit work. 

* In our Audit Planning Report we identified and reported areas where audit work will be 
required over and above the level of the scale fee previously set. Subsequent to the 
issuance of our Audit Planning Report, as a result of the impact of the Covid-19 
pandemic, there has also been additional work required in respect of our consideration of 
the going concern basis of accounting. 

Additional costs are as follows:

We will discuss these additional costs with management.  All scale fee variations are 
subject to approval from PSAA Ltd.

Description

Final Fee

2019/20

£

Final Fee

2018/19

£

Audit Fee – Code work –
Scale fee

38,046 38,046

Audit Fee – Code work –
Scale fee variation*

11,185 12,600

Total Audit Fee – Code work 49,231 50,646

Total non-audit services 5,000 5,000

Audit of land and building valuation including use of specialists 4,229

Covid 19 – Going Concern and consultation 3,965

Covid 19 – Impact on risk assessment 577

Covid 19 – Additional time incurred in performing the audit remotely 2,414

Total Scale Fee Variation 11,185

P
age 68



39

Independence

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

The FRC Ethical Standard requires that we provide details of all relationships between Ernst & Young (EY) and your Authority, senior management and its affiliates, 
including all services provided by us and our network to your Authority, senior management and its affiliates, and other services provided to other known connected 
parties that we consider may reasonably be thought to bear on the our integrity or objectivity, including those that could compromise independence and the related 
safeguards that are in place and why they address the threats.
There are no relationships from 1 April 2019 to the date of this report, which we consider may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and objectivity. 

Services provided by Ernst & Young

The previous page sets out a summary of the fees that you have paid to us in the year ended 31 March 2020 in line with the disclosures set out in FRC Ethical Standard 
and in statute. 

We confirm that none of the services listed have been provided on a contingent fee basis.

As at the date of this report, there are no future services which have been contracted and no written proposal to provide non-audit services has been submitted.

P
age 69



40

Independence

Summary of key changes

• Extraterritorial application of the FRC Ethical Standard to UK PIE and its worldwide affiliates 

• A general prohibition on the provision of non-audit services by the auditor (or its network) to a UK PIE, its UK parent and worldwide subsidiaries
• A narrow list of permitted services where closely related to the audit and/or required by law or regulation
• Absolute prohibition on the following relationships applicable to UK PIE and its affiliates including material significant investees/investors:

• Tax advocacy services
• Remuneration advisory services
• Internal audit services
• Secondment/loan staff arrangements

• An absolute prohibition on contingent fees.
• Requirement to meet the higher standard for business relationships i.e. business relationships between the audit firm and the audit client will only be permitted if it is 

inconsequential.
• Permitted services required by law or regulation will not be subject to the 70% fee cap.
• Grandfathering will apply for otherwise prohibited non-audit services that are open at 15 March 2020 such that the engagement may continue until completed in 

accordance with the original engagement terms. 
• A requirement for the auditor to notify the Ethics, Transparency and Audit Panel where the audit fee might compromise perceived independence and the appropriate 

safeguards.
• A requirement to report to the Ethics, Transparency and Audit Panel details of any breaches of the Ethical Standard and any actions taken by the firm to address any 

threats to independence. A requirement for non-network component firm whose work is used in the group audit engagement to comply with the same independence 
standard as the group auditor. Our current understanding is that the requirement to follow UK independence rules is limited to the component firm issuing the audit 
report and not to its network. This is subject to clarification with the FRC.

New UK Independence Standards
The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) published the Revised Ethical Standard 2019 in December and it will apply to accounting periods starting on or after 15 March 
2020. A key change in the new Ethical Standard will be a general prohibition on the provision of non-audit services by the auditor (and its network) which will apply to UK 
Public Interest Entities (PIEs). A narrow list of permitted services will continue to be allowed. 

Next Steps

We will continue to monitor and assess all ongoing and proposed non-audit services and relationships to ensure they are permitted under FRC Revised Ethical Standard 
2016 which will continue to apply until 31 March 2020 as well as the recently released FRC Revised Ethical Standard 2019 which will be effective from 1 April 2020. We 
will work with you to ensure orderly completion of the services or where required, transition to another service provider within mutually agreed timescales.

We do not provide any non-audit services which would be prohibited under the new standard.

P
age 70



41

Independence

EY Transparency Report 2020

Ernst & Young (EY) has policies and procedures that instil professional values as part of firm culture and ensure that the highest standards of objectivity, independence 
and integrity are maintained. 

Details of the key policies and processes in place within EY for maintaining objectivity and independence can be found in our annual Transparency Report which the firm 
is required to publish by law. The most recent version of this Report is for the year end 30 June 2020: 

https://www.ey.com/en_uk/who-we-are/transparency-report-2020

Other communications

P
age 71

https://www.ey.com/en_uk/who-we-are/transparency-report-2020


42

Appendices10

P
age 72



43

Appendix A

Required communications with the Audit Committee
There are certain communications that we must provide to the Audit Committees of UK clients. We have detailed these here together with a reference of when and where 
they were covered:

Our Reporting to you

Required 
communications

What is reported? When and where

Terms of engagement Confirmation by the Audit Committee of acceptance of terms of engagement as written 
in the engagement letter signed by both parties.

The statement of responsibilities serves as the 
formal terms of engagement between the 
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies

Our responsibilities Reminder of our responsibilities as set out in the engagement letter. Audit planning report dated 1 May 2020

Planning and audit 
approach

Communication of the planned scope and timing of the audit, any limitations and the 
significant risks identified.

Audit planning report dated 1 May 2020

Significant findings 
from the audit

• Our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including 
accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures

• Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit

• Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with management

• Written representations that we are seeking

• Expected modifications to the audit report

• Other matters if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process

• Findings and issues regarding the opening balance on initial audits

Audit results report

P
age 73



44

Appendix A

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Going concern Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, including:

• Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty

• Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation 
and presentation of the financial statements

• The adequacy of related disclosures in the financial statements

Audit results report

Misstatements • Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion

• The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods 

• A request that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected

• Material misstatements corrected by management

Audit results report

Subsequent events • Enquiry of the Audit Committee where appropriate regarding whether any subsequent 
events have occurred that might affect the financial statements.

Fraud • Enquiries of the Audit Committee to determine whether they have knowledge of any 
actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the Authority

• Any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that indicates that a 
fraud may exist

• Unless all of those charged with governance are involved in managing the Authority, any 
identified or suspected fraud involving:

a. Management; 

b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 

c. Others where the fraud results in a material misstatement in the financial statements.

• The nature, timing and extent of audit procedures necessary to complete the audit when 
fraud involving management is suspected

• Any other matters related to fraud, relevant to Audit Committee responsibility.

Audit results report

P
age 74



45

Appendix A

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Related parties Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the Authority’s related 
parties including, when applicable:

• Non-disclosure by management 

• Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions 

• Disagreement over disclosures 

• Non-compliance with laws and regulations 

• Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the Authority

Audit results report

Independence Communication of all significant facts and matters that bear on EY’s, and all individuals 
involved in the audit, objectivity and independence.

Communication of key elements of the audit engagement partner’s consideration of 
independence and objectivity such as:

• The principal threats

• Safeguards adopted and their effectiveness

• An overall assessment of threats and safeguards

• Information about the general policies and process within the firm to maintain objectivity 
and independence

Communications whenever significant judgments are made about threats to objectivity and 
independence and the appropriateness of safeguards put in place.

Audit planning report dated 1 May 2020
and
Audit results reportP

age 75



46

Appendix A

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

External confirmations • Management’s refusal for us to request confirmations 

• Inability to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures.

We have received all requested confirmations

Consideration of laws 
and regulations

• Subject to compliance with applicable regulations, matters involving identified or 
suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations, other than those which are clearly 
inconsequential and the implications thereof. Instances of suspected non-compliance 
may also include those that are brought to our attention that are expected to occur 
imminently or for which there is reason to believe that they may occur

• Enquiry of the Audit Committee into possible instances of non-compliance with laws and 
regulations that may have a material effect on the financial statements and that the 
Audit Committee may be aware of

We have not identified any material instances 
or non-compliance with laws and regulations

Significant deficiencies in 
internal controls identified 
during the audit

• Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit. Audit results report

P
age 76



47

Appendix A

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Written representations 
we are requesting from 
management and/or those 
charged with governance

• Written representations we are requesting from management and/or those charged with 
governance

Audit results report

Material inconsistencies or 
misstatements of fact 
identified in other 
information which 
management has refused 
to revise

• Material inconsistencies or misstatements of fact identified in other information which 
management has refused to revise

Audit results report

Auditors report • Any circumstances identified that affect the form and content of our auditor’s report Audit results report

Fee Reporting • Breakdown of fee information when the  audit planning report is agreed

• Breakdown of fee information at the completion of the audit

• Any non-audit work 

Audit planning report dated 1 May 2020

Audit results report

P
age 77



48

Appendix B

Outstanding matters
The following items relating to the completion of our audit procedures are outstanding at the date of the release of this report:

Item Actions to resolve Responsibility

Management representation letter Receipt of signed management representation letter Management and Audit and Standards Committee

Whole of Government Accounts return to NAO Completion of required assurance return EY

Subsequent events review Completion of subsequent events procedures to the date 
of signing the audit report

EY and management

P
age 78



49

Appendix C

Draft Management representation letter

3. The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are 
appropriately described in the financial statements.

4. As members of management of the Council, we believe that the Council has a system of internal 
controls adequate to enable the preparation of accurate financial statements in accordance with the 
CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20, that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. We have disclosed to you any 
significant changes in our processes, controls, policies and procedures that we have made to address 
the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic on our system of internal controls.

5. There are no unadjusted audit differences identified during the current audit and pertaining to the 
latest period presented.

B. Non-compliance with law and regulations, including fraud 

1. We acknowledge that we are responsible to determine that the Council’s activities are conducted in 
accordance with laws and regulations and that we are responsible to identify and address any non-
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, including fraud.

2. We acknowledge that we are responsible for the design, implementation and maintenance of 
internal controls to prevent and detect fraud. 

3. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements 
may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

4. We have no knowledge of any identified or suspected non-compliance with laws or regulations, 
including fraud that may have affected the Council (regardless of the source or form and including 
without limitation, any allegations by “whistleblowers”), including non-compliance matters:

• involving financial statements;
• related to laws and regulations that have a direct effect on the determination of 

material amounts and disclosures in the Council’s financial statements;
• related to laws and regulations that have an indirect effect on amounts and disclosures 

in the financial statements, but compliance with which may be fundamental to the 
operations of the Council’s activities, its ability to continue to operate, or to avoid 
material penalties;

[To be prepared on the entity’s letterhead]
[Date] 

Helen Henshaw
Ernst & Young LLP
1 Colmore Circus Queensway
Birmingham
B4 6AJ

This letter of representations is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements 
of Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council (“the Council”) for the year ended 31 March 2020.  We 
recognise that obtaining representations from us concerning the information contained in this 
letter is a significant procedure in enabling you to form an opinion as to whether the financial 
statements give a true and fair view of the Council financial position of Hinckley and Bosworth 
Borough Council as of 31 March 2020 and of its income and expenditure for the year then ended 
in accordance with CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 
Kingdom 2019/20.

We understand that the purpose of your audit of our financial statements is to express an opinion 
thereon and that your audit was conducted in accordance with International Standards on 
Auditing (UK), which involves an examination of the accounting system, internal control and 
related data to the extent you considered necessary in the circumstances, and is not designed to 
identify - nor necessarily be expected to disclose - all fraud, shortages, errors and other 
irregularities, should any exist.

Accordingly, we make the following representations, which are true to the best of our knowledge 
and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered necessary for the purpose of 
appropriately informing ourselves: 

A. Financial Statements and Financial Records

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, under the relevant statutory authorities, for the 
preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 
2015 and CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 
2019/20. 

2.We acknowledge, as members of management of the Council, our responsibility for the fair 
presentation of the financial statements.  We believe the financial statements referred to above 
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance (or results of operations) 
and cash flows of the Council in accordance with the CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20, and are free of material misstatements, 
including omissions.  We have approved the financial statements.

Management Rep Letter

P
age 79



50

Appendix C

Draft Management representation letter (Continued)

7. From 30 January 2020 through the date of this letter we have disclosed to you any unauthorized 
access to our information technology systems that either occurred or to the best of our knowledge is 
reasonably likely to have occurred based on our investigation, including of reports submitted to us by 
third parties (including regulatory agencies, law enforcement agencies and security consultants) , to 
the extent that such unauthorized access to our information technology systems is reasonably likely 
to have a material impact to the financial statements, in each case or in the aggregate.

D. Liabilities and Contingencies

1. All liabilities and contingencies, including those associated with guarantees, whether written or 
oral, have been disclosed to you and are appropriately reflected in the financial statements.  

2. We have informed you of all outstanding and possible litigation and claims, whether or not they 
have been discussed with legal counsel.

3. We have recorded and/or disclosed, as appropriate, all liabilities related to litigation and claims, 
both actual and contingent, and have disclosed in Note [X] to the financial statements all guarantees 
that we have given to third parties. 

E. Subsequent Events 

1. There have been no events, including events related to the COVID-19 pandemic, subsequent to 
period end which require adjustment of or disclosure in the financial statements or notes thereto. 

F. Other information

1. We acknowledge our responsibility for the preparation of the other information. The other 
information comprises The Annual Governance Statement and Narrative Statement.

2. We confirm that the content contained within the other information is consistent with the financial 
statements.

G. Going Concern

1. Note [X] to the consolidated and Authority financial statements discloses all the matters of which 
we are aware that are relevant to the Group and Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern, 
including significant conditions and events, our plans for future action, and the feasibility of those 
plans.

• involving management, or employees who have significant roles in internal controls, or others; 
or 

• in relation to any allegations of fraud, suspected fraud or other non-compliance with laws and 
regulations communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or others. 

C. Information Provided and Completeness of Information and Transactions

1. We have provided you with:
• Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the 

financial statements such as records, documentation and other matters;
• Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit; and
• Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary to 

obtain audit evidence.

2. All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and all material 
transactions, events and conditions are reflected in the financial statements, including those 
related to the COVID-19 pandemic.

3. We have made available to you all minutes of the meetings of the Full Council, Cabinet and 
Audit Committee (or summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet 
been prepared) held through the year to the most recent meeting on the following date: 21 
October 2020.  

4. We confirm the completeness of information provided regarding the identification of related 
parties. We have disclosed to you the identity of the Council’s related parties and all related party 
relationships and transactions of which we are aware, including sales, purchases, loans, transfers 
of assets, liabilities and services, leasing arrangements, guarantees, non-monetary transactions 
and transactions for no consideration for the period ended, as well as related balances due to or 
from such parties at the year-end.  These transactions have been appropriately accounted for and 
disclosed in the financial statements.

5. We believe that the significant assumptions we used in making accounting estimates, including 
those measured at fair value, are reasonable.

6. We have disclosed to you, and the Council has complied with, all aspects of contractual 
agreements that could have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of non-
compliance, including all covenants, conditions or other requirements of all outstanding debt.

Management Rep Letter

P
age 80



51

Appendix C

Draft Management representation letter (Continued)

2. We confirm that the significant assumptions used in making the estimated valuations of Pension 
Asset/Liabilities, Property, Plant and Equipment, and NDR Appeals Provision appropriately reflect our 
intent and ability to carry out specific courses of action on behalf of the entity.

3. We confirm that the disclosures made in the financial statements with respect to the accounting 
estimates are complete, including the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, and made in accordance 
with CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20.

4. We confirm that no adjustments are required to the accounting estimates and disclosures in the 
financial statements due to subsequent events, including due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

L. Retirement benefits

1. On the basis of the process established by us and having made appropriate enquiries, we are 
satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the scheme liabilities are consistent with our 
knowledge of the business. All significant retirement benefits and all settlements and curtailments 
have been identified and properly accounted for.

Yours faithfully, 

_______________________
Ashley Wilson (Head of Finance)

_______________________
Councillor David Cope (Chairman of the Audit Committee) 

H. Ownership of Assets

1. Except for assets capitalised under finance leases, the Council has satisfactory title to all 
assets appearing in the balance sheet, and there are no liens or encumbrances on the Council’s 
assets, nor has any asset been pledged as collateral, other than those that are disclosed in Note 
[X] to the financial statements. All assets to which the Council has satisfactory title appear in the 
balance sheet.

2. All agreements and options to buy back assets previously sold have been properly recorded 
and adequately disclosed in the financial statements.

3. There are no formal or informal compensating balance arrangements with any of our cash and 
investment accounts. Except as disclosed in Note [X] to the financial statements, we have no 
other line of credit arrangements. 

4. There are no formal or informal compensating balance arrangements with any of our cash and 
investment accounts.

I. Reserves

1. We have properly recorded or disclosed in the financial statements the useable and unusable 
reserves. 

J. Use of the Work of a Specialist

1. We agree with the findings of the specialists that we engaged to evaluate the valuation of non-
current assets and have adequately considered the qualifications of the specialists in determining 
the amounts and disclosures included in the financial statements and the underlying accounting 
records. We did not give or cause any instructions to be given to the specialists with respect to 
the values or amounts derived in an attempt to bias their work, and we are not otherwise aware 
of any matters that have had an effect on the independence or objectivity of the specialists.

K. Estimates 
Valuation of Pension Asset / Liabilities, Property, Plant and Equipment, and NDR Appeals 
Provision Estimates

1. We believe that the measurement processes, including related assumptions and models, used 
to determine the accounting estimates have been consistently applied and are appropriate in the 
context of CIPFA LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 
2019/20.

Management Rep Letter

P
age 81



52

Appendix D

Accounting and regulatory update 

teams are encouraged to include a summary 

Detailed content has not been prescribed, as 

Future accounting developments

Since the date of our last report to the Audit Committee, there have been a number of exposure drafts, discussion papers and other projects issues. The following table 
provides a high level summary of those that have the potential to have the most significant impact on you:

Name Summary of key measures Impact on HBBC

IFRS 16 • The adoption of IFRS 16 by CIPFA/LASAAC as the basis for preparation of 
Local Authority Financial Statements has been deferred until 1 April 2021.  
The Council will therefore no longer be required to undertake an impact 
assessment, and disclosure of the impact of the standard in the financial 
statements does not now need to be financially quantified in 2019/20.

Update: IFRS 16 adoption has been further deferred to at least 1 April 2022

• Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council will need 
to ensure that all lease arrangements entered into 
are identified and quantified (including for the 
comparative period) prior to the new 
implementation date 

• Consider whether appropriate systems and 
processes are in place to embed the requirements 
of the new accounting standard going forward. 

Regulatory update

Since the date of our last report to the Ethics, Transparency and Audit Panel, there have been a number of regulatory developments. The following table provides a high 
level summary of those that have the potential to have the most significant impact on you:

Name Summary of key measures Impact on HBBC

Code of Audit Practice 2020 • The updated Code of Audit Practice issued by the National Audit Office has 
introduced some significant changes to the requirements regarding auditors’ 
work on the value for money conclusion, which will be applicable from 
2020/21.

• The NAO are currently updating the Auditor 
Guidance Notes which will set out how the new 
Code of Audit Practice should be applied when 
carrying out value for money work. As such, the 
impact remains to be confirmed. 

• Further updates will be provided when possible.

P
age 82



53

Appendix E
teams are encouraged to include a summary 

Detailed content has not been prescribed, as 

Independent Review into the Oversight of Local 
Audit and the Transparency of Local Authority 
Financial Reporting

Published on the 8th September 2020, Sir Tony Redmond’s 
findings and recommendations from his independent 
review provides a significant opportunity to shape the 
future sustainability of local government financial reporting 
and auditing. We believe this will help ensure audit 
continues to meet the evolving needs of local authorities, 
the public, and the public interest. 

Guiding principles for reform 
We believe reforms should be guided by the following 
principles:
• Reforms should enhance, or at least should not create 

risks to, the quality of financial reporting and external 
audit.

• The importance of the multidisciplinary audit firm model, 
to enable local auditors to respond efficiently and 
effectively to the increased reporting complexity, risks 
and financial resilience pressures we have seen facing 
the public sector pre and post Covid-19.

• There should not be a two-tier system of generally 
accepted accounting and auditing standards between the 
public and corporate sectors. 

• To be effective and sustainable, reforms need to focus on 
the public sector financial reporting and external audit 
ecosystem as a whole. 

Reflections from the Redmond Review

P
age 83



54

Appendix E

Reflections from the Redmond Review (continued)

teams are encouraged to include a summary 

Detailed content has not been prescribed, as 

Taking our guiding principles, we broadly welcome the Redmond review and proposals, in particular:

Quality of financial reporting and external audit
• The recognition that all stakeholders in the ecosystem have a role to play to improve accountability, transparency and 

sustainability. This includes improving the effectiveness of Audit Committees, strengthening the training skills, capacity 
capability and attractiveness of the public sector finance and audit professions. 

• His conclusion that the current procurement and fee structure does not support sustainable audit quality. We have provided 
you with our perspectives on how baseline audit fees need to change to take account of your risk profile, complexity as well as 
the regulatory and professional context which drive our audits. 

Reforming the public sector financial reporting and external audit ecosystem
• Establishing the Office for Local Audit Regulation (OLAR), which provides a “system leader” and will bring clarity to the existing 

framework for local authority audit.
• The importance of MHCLG establishing a liaison committee of all key stakeholders to oversee reforms. To begin with MHCLG 

should take urgent action to implement primary legislation to establish OLAR, revise the timetable for financial reporting and 
revisit the procurement and fee structure for public sector audit.

Multidisciplinary audit firm model 
• The importance of the auditors work to critically assess the financial resilience and viability of public sector bodies and his 

proposals on how this assessment could be enhanced within the NAOs code of audit practice. 

Safeguarding professional accounting and auditing standards 
• The need for CIPFA/LASAAC to revisit the accounting code and introduce summarised accounts. We agree that there is a need 

for more proportionality in the Code which also sets out the expectations of practitioners and auditors and how this could be
applied in areas such as pensions and asset valuations. However, we believe that any future proposals on the accounting code 
should not create a two-tier system.

P
age 84



EY  |  Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory

About EY
EY is a global leader in assurance, tax, transaction and advisory 
services. The insights and quality services we deliver help build 
trust and confidence in the capital markets and in economies the 
world over. We develop outstanding leaders who team to deliver 
on our promises to all of our stakeholders. In so doing, we play a 
critical role in building a better working world for our people, for 
our clients and for our communities.
EY refers to the global organization, and may refer to one or 
more, of the member firms of Ernst & Young Global Limited, each 
of which is a separate legal entity. Ernst & Young Global Limited, a 
UK company limited by guarantee, does not provide services to 
clients. For more information about our organization, please visit 
ey.com.

© 2017 EYGM Limited.
All Rights Reserved.

ED None

This material has been prepared for general informational purposes only and is not 
intended to be relied upon as accounting, tax, or other professional advice. Please refer 
to your advisors for specific advice.

ey.com

P
age 85



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

The UK firm Ernst & Young LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales with registered number OC300001 and is a member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited. 
A list of members’ names is available for inspection at 1 More London Place, London SE1 2AF, the firm’s principal place of business and  registered office.  Ernst & Young LLP is a multi-
disciplinary practice and is authorised and regulated by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the Solicitors Regulation Authority and other regulators.  Further details 
can be found at http://www.ey.com/UK/en/Home/Legal. 

Ernst & Young LLP 
1 Colmore Square  
Birmingham 
B4 6AJ 

   Tel: + 44 121 535 2000 
  ey.com 
 
 

 

 

 
Councillor David Cope 
Chair of Audit Committee 
Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council 

Hinckley Hub 

Rugby Road 

Hinckley 

LE10 0FR 

28 September 2021 
 
Ref:  HBBC 20/21 

 
Email: hclark3@uk.ey.com 
  

Dear Councillor Cope 

Audit letter – Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council audit of accounts 
2020/21 

Under the 2020 Code of Audit Practice, for Local Government bodies we are required to issue our 
Auditor’s Annual Report by 30 September or, where this is not possible, issue an audit letter setting out 
the reasons for delay. The target date for you to publish your accounts for the financial year ending 31 
March 2021 is 30 September 2021, as set out within The Accounts and Audit (Amendment) Regulations 
2021. 

As a result of the ongoing impact of the coronavirus pandemic, and the impact it has had on both 
preparers and auditors of accounts to complete their work as quickly as would normally be expected, the 
National Audit Office has updated its guidance to auditors to allow us to postpone completion of our work 
on arrangements to secure value for money and focus our resources firstly on the delivery of our 
opinions on the financial statements. This is intended to help ensure as many as possible could be 
issued in line with national timetables and legislation.  The guidance allows auditors to issue our 
Auditor’s Annual Report 3 months after giving our opinion on the financial statements. 

Due to rescheduling the audit delivery timing we will not be able to give our opinion on your financial 
statements by 30 September 2021.  At the present time we anticipate that we will be able to meet the 
guidance for issuing our Auditor’s Annual Report, including our commentary on arrangements to secure 
value for money, within the period of 3 months after giving our opinion on the financial statements. If 
circumstances should change, we will write to you again with an explanation.  

For the purposes of compliance with the 2020 Code, this letter constitutes the required audit letter 
explaining the reasons for delay.  

In writing this audit letter we also take the opportunity to remind you that you should still publish your 
accounts by 30 September, without the audit report.  Set out below is an example of the wording that we 
suggest could be used to meet the requirements of the regulations to explain why your accounts would 
not be audited as at that date. 

The external audit of the draft statement of accounts for the year ended 31 March 2021 has not yet been 
completed by our external auditors, EY LLP, due to rescheduling the audit delivery timing.  This situation 
is allowed for by Regulation 10, paragraph (2a) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.   (See 
attached link: http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/234/regulation/10/made). Therefore, this 
notification explains, as per paragraph (2a), that we are not yet able to publish our audited 2020/21 final 
statement of accounts in line with deadline of 30th September 2021, as per paragraph (1). The audit 
committee will consider the results of the 2020/21 audit at its meeting on 19 January 2022, after which 
we will publish the final audited accounts. 

Yours sincerely, 

 
 
Hayley Clark 

Associate Partner  

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP 

Page 87

Agenda Item 8

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2015/234/regulation/10/made


This page is intentionally left blank



Hinckley and Bosworth 
Borough Council

Audit planning report 

Year ended 31 March 2021

15 November 2021 

P
age 89

A
genda Item

 9



2

Private and Confidential 15 November 2021

Dear Audit Committee Members

Audit planning report

We are pleased to attach our Audit Planning Report which sets out how we intend to carry out our responsibilities as auditor. Its purpose is to 
provide the Audit Committee with a basis to review our proposed audit approach and scope for the 2020/21 audit in accordance with the 
requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, the National Audit Office’s 2015 Code of Audit Practice, the Statement of 
Responsibilities issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) Ltd, auditing standards and other professional requirements. It is also to 
ensure that our audit is aligned with the Committee’s service expectations.

This Audit Planning Report summarises our initial assessment of the key risks driving the development of an effective audit for the Council and 
outlines our planned audit strategy in response to those risks. Our planning procedures remain ongoing; where required we wil l inform the 
Audit Committee if there any significant changes or revisions once we have completed these procedures, or before if considered necessary.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Audit Committee and management, and is not intended to be and should not 
be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss this report with you on 24 November 2021 as well as understand whether there are other matters 
which you consider may influence our audit.

Yours faithfully 

Hayley Clark

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

Members of the Audit Committee  
Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council 
Hinckley Hub
Rugby Road 
Hinckley 
LE10 0FR

P
age 90



3

Contents

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) issued the “Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies”. It is available from the PSAA website (https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-
quality/statement-of-responsibilities/)).The Statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different 
responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain areas. 
The “Terms of Appointment and further guidance (updated April 2018)” issued by the PSAA sets out additional requirements that auditors must comply with, over and above those set out in the National 
Audit Office Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and in legislation, and covers matters of practice and procedure which are of a recurring nature.
This report is made solely to the Audit Committee and management of Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council in accordance with the statement of responsibilities. Our work has been undertaken so that 
we might state to the Audit Committee and management of Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council those matters we are required to state to them in this report and for no other purpose. To the fullest 
extent permitted by law we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Audit Committee and management of Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council for this report or for the opinions 
we have formed. It should not be provided to any third-party without our prior written consent.

Overview of our 
2020/21 audit 
strategy

01 Audit risks02 Audit 
materiality

04 Scope of our 
audit

05

Appendices09Audit team06 Audit 
timeline07 Independence08

Value for 
Money risks

03

V
F
M

P
age 91

https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/statement-of-responsibilities/


4

Overview of our 2020/21 
audit strategy

01 01

P
age 92



5

Overview of our 2020/21 audit strategy

Audit risks and areas of focus

Risk / area of focus Risk identified Change from PY Details

Misstatements due to 
fraud or error

Fraud risk
No change in risk 

or focus

As identified in ISA 240, management is in a unique position to perpetrate fraud because of its ability 
to manipulate accounting records directly or indirectly and prepare fraudulent financial statements by 
overriding controls that would otherwise appear to be operating effectively. 

Risk of fraud in 
revenue recognition : 
Cut-off of other 
income 

Fraud risk
New in the 

current year 

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that revenue may be misstated due to improper revenue 
recognition. We consider the risk to be relevant to those significant revenue streams other than 
taxation receipts and grants, where management is able to apply more judgement. Specifically, our 
risk is focused on other income such as fees, charges and other service income where income may be 
recorded in the wrong period. 

Risk of fraud in 
revenue recognition : 
Incorrect recognition 
of Covid-19 Grants 

Fraud risk
New in the 

current year 

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that revenue may be misstated due to improper revenue 
recognition. In addition to the risk above we have also identified the recognition and treatment of 
additional grants received in year for Covid-19 as a risk. 

Risk of fraud in 
revenue and 
expenditure 
recognition: 
Inappropriate 
capitalisation of 
expenditure

Fraud risk
No change in risk 

or focus

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that revenue may be misstated due to improper revenue 
recognition. In the public sector, this requirement is modified by Practice Note 10 issued by the 
Financial Reporting Council, which states that auditors should also consider the risk that material 
misstatements may occur by the manipulation of expenditure recognition. We have re-evaluated the 
perceived fraud risks and consider that this risk is more prevalent over the medium term and is likely 
to occur through the inappropriate capitalisation of expenditure. 

The following ‘dashboard’ summarises the significant accounting and auditing matters outlined in this report. It seeks to provide the Audit Committee with 
an overview of our initial risk identification for the upcoming audit and any changes in risks identified in the current year.  

P
age 93



6

Overview of our 2020/21 audit strategy 

Risk / area of focus Risk identified Change from PY Details

Valuation and impairment 
of Property, Plant and 
Equipment (PPE) – Assets 
valued by Fair Value (FV) 
and Existing Use Valuation 
(EUV)

Significant risk
Change in risk or 

focus

The Council accounts for certain classes of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) at valuation. 
Management is required to make material judgemental inputs and apply estimation techniques to 
calculate the year-end balances recorded in the balance sheet. Assets valued at Fair Value and 
Existing Use Valuation have high degrees of estimation involved in their valuation techniques. We 
have encountered instances in the prior year where FV and EUV valuations fell outside of our 
internal valuation team’s range. 

Understatement of bad debt 
provision

Other financial 
statement risk 

(Higher 
inherent risk)

New in the 
current year

Based on the current social conditions, including the spread of the Covid-19 pandemic which has 
affected the general public in the 20/21 financial year, there could be an increased risk of bad 
debts due to the inability of the Council’s debtors to meet their obligations. 

Valuation and impairment 
of Property, Plant and 
Equipment (PPE) – Assets 
valued by Depreciated 
Replacement Cost (DRC) 
and Council Dwellings 

Other financial 
statement risk 

(Higher 
inherent risk)

Change in risk or 
focus

The Council accounts for certain classes of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) at valuation. 
Management is required to make material judgemental inputs and apply estimation techniques to 
calculate the year-end balances recorded in the balance sheet. Assets valued by DRC, and Council 
Dwellings are subject to a degree of estimation. The level of estimation included is less than the 
valuation of FV and EUV assets, so therefore we recognise a higher inherent risk.

Accounting for pension 
liability

Other financial 
statement risk 

(Higher 
inherent risk)

No change in risk 
or focus

The accounting entries relating to the Local Government Pension Schemes are underpinned by 
significant assumptions and estimates. There is therefore an increased risk of misstatement and 
error. The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to a range of assumptions such 
as rates of pay and pension inflation, mortality and discount rates. The pension fund valuations 
separately involve external specialists, to provide these actuarial assumptions. The estimation of 
the defined benefit assets involves estimation on the expected asset returns for the year based on 
the movement in the underlying Pension Fund total assets. A small movement in these assumptions 
could have a material impact on the value in the balance sheet. 

P
age 94



7

Overview of our 2020/21 audit strategy 

Audit team changes 

Engagement Partner: Hayley Clark
Hayley is the new engagement partner for Hinckley 
and Bosworth Borough Council. Hayley has over 
fifteen years of audit experience, specialising in the 
public sector.

Materiality

Planning
materiality

£1,170k
Performance 

materiality

£878k
Audit

differences

£59k

Materiality has been set at £1,170k, which represents 2% of the current years gross expenditure on provision of services. 

Performance materiality has been set at £878k, which represents 75% of materiality.

We will report all uncorrected misstatements relating to the primary statements (comprehensive income 
and expenditure statement, balance sheet, movement in reserves statement, cash flow statement, 
housing revenue account and collection fund) greater than £59k. Other misstatements identified will be 
communicated to the extent that they merit the attention of the Audit Committee.

Manager: Gary Morris
Gary remains as the manager for Hinckley and Bosworth 
Borough Council. Gary has a significant amount of audit 
experience within the public sector. 

P
age 95



8

Overview of our 2020/21 audit strategy 

Audit scope

This Audit Plan covers the work that we plan to perform to provide you with:

• Our audit opinion on whether the financial statements of Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 31 March 
2021 and of the income and expenditure for the year then ended; and

• Our conclusion on the Council’s arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

We will also review and report to the National Audit Office (NAO), to the extent and in the form required by them, on the Council’s Whole of Government Accounts 
return.

Our audit will also include the mandatory procedures that we are required to perform in accordance with applicable laws and auditing standards.

When planning the audit we take into account several key inputs:

• Strategic, operational and financial risks relevant to the financial statements;
• Developments in financial reporting and auditing standards;
• The quality of systems and processes;
• Changes in the business and regulatory environment; and,
• Management’s views on all of the above.

By considering these inputs, our audit is focused on the areas that matter and our feedback is more likely to be relevant to the Council. 

Taking the above into account, and as articulated in this audit plan, our professional responsibilities require us to independently assess the risks associated with 
providing an audit opinion and undertake appropriate procedures in response to that. Our Terms of Appointment with PSAA allow them to vary the fee dependent on 
“the auditors assessment of risk and the work needed to meet their professional responsibilities”. PSAA are aware that the setting of scale fees  has not kept pace with 
the changing requirements of external audit with increased focus on, for example, the valuations of land and buildings, the auditing of groups, the valuation of pension 
obligations, the introduction of new accounting standards such as IFRS 9 and 15 in recent years as well as the expansion of factors impacting the value for money 
conclusion. Therefore to the extent any of these or any other risks are relevant in the context of Hinckley and Bosworth Borough Council’s audit, we will discuss these 
with management as to the impact on the scale fee.

There have been changes to the Value for Money approach in 2020/21, and there will be the need for additional work. We have set out below where we believe gives rise 
to additional fee. We will discuss with management during the audit and report back to the Audit Committee. 

• The 2020 Code has changed the scope of the value for money risk assessment and work required. 
• Additional work that will be required to address the value for money risks if identified from the risk assessment. 

P
age 96



9

Audit risks02 01

P
age 97



10

Audit risks

Our response to significant risks

What will we do?

In order to address this risk we will carry out a range of procedures 
including:

• Identifying fraud risks during the planning stages.

• Inquiry of management about risks of fraud and the controls put in 
place to address those risks.

• Understanding the oversight given by those charged with governance 
of management’s processes over fraud.

• Consideration of the effectiveness of management’s controls designed 
to address the risk of fraud.

• Determining an appropriate strategy to address those identified risks 
of fraud.

• Performing mandatory procedures regardless of specifically identified 
fraud risks, including:

• testing of journal entries and other adjustments in the 
preparation of the financial statements;

• assessing accounting estimates for evidence of management 
bias; and

• evaluating the business rationale for significant unusual 
transactions.

What is the risk?

The financial statements as a whole are not free of 
material misstatements whether caused by fraud 
or error.

As identified in ISA (UK) 240, management is in a 
unique position to perpetrate fraud because of its 
ability to manipulate accounting records directly or 
indirectly and prepare fraudulent financial 
statements by overriding controls that otherwise 
appear to be operating effectively. We identify and 
respond to this fraud risk on every audit 
engagement.

Misstatements due to 
fraud or error*

We have set out the significant risks (including fraud risks denoted by*) identified for the current year audit along with the rationale and expected audit approach.
The risks identified below may change to reflect any significant findings or subsequent issues we identify during the audit.

P
age 98



11

Audit risks

Our response to significant risks 
What will we do?

In order to address this risk we will carry out a range of procedures 
including:

• Performing overall analytical review procedures to identify any unusual 
movements or trends for further investigation;

• Using our data analytics tool to identify and test the appropriateness of 
journal entries recorded in the general ledger and other adjustments 
made in the preparation of the financial statements, specifically those 
that manually move income between financial years;

• Undertaking a monthly trend analysis using our data analytics tools to 
identify any unusual movements in balances for further analysis and 
testing; and

• Selecting a sample of fees, charges and service fees income posted just 
prior to year end as well as post year end to confirm if this has been 
recorded in the correct period.

Financial statement impact

Misstatements that occur in 
relation to the risk of fraud in 
revenue could affect the other 
income account. These accounts 
have the following balance in the 
2021 draft financial statements:

• Fees, charges and other service 
income: £21.3m. 

What is the risk?

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that 
revenue may be misstated due to improper 
revenue recognition. 

We consider the risk to be relevant to those 
significant revenue streams other than taxation 
receipts and grants, where management is able 
to apply more judgement.

Specifically, our risk is focused on cut off, where 
income is recorded in the incorrect accounting 
period. 

Risk of fraud in revenue 
recognition: Cut off risk in 
other income *

P
age 99



12

Audit risks

Our response to significant risks 
What will we do?

In order to address this risk we will carry out a range of procedures 
including:

• Performing overall analytical review procedures to identify any unusual 
movements or trends for further investigation;

• Using our data analytics tool to identify and test the appropriateness of 
journal entries recorded in the general ledger and other adjustments 
made in the preparation of the financial statements, specifically those 
that manually move income into the next year;

• Obtain an understanding of the types of Covid-19 grants received in 
year and management’s justification of the Council’s role as principal or 
agent; and

• Sample testing the Covid-19 grants received by the Council to ensure 
the accounting treatment and recognition applied to grant income is 
appropriate.

Financial statement impact

Misstatements that occur in 
relation to the risk of fraud in 
revenue could affect the income 
accounts. These accounts have the 
following balance in the 2021 draft 
financial statements:

• Covid Grants: £11.7m

What is the risk?

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that 
revenue may be misstated due to improper 
revenue recognition. Specifically, our risk is 
focused on the recognition and treatment of 
additional grants received in year for Covid-19.

The Council has received a number of grants in 
2020/21 as a result of the pandemic and there 
is a risk that the accounting treatment of these 
grants will not appropriately reflect the 
underlying terms and conditions of the grant 
agreement.

Risk of fraud in revenue 
recognition : Incorrect 
recognition of Covid-19 
Grants* 

P
age 100



13

Audit risks

Our response to significant risks (continued) 
What will we do?

In order to address this risk we will carry out a range of procedures including:

• Reviewing the appropriateness of capitalisation accounting policies; 

• Using our data analytics tool to identify and test the appropriateness of 
journal entries recorded in the general ledger and other adjustments made 
in the preparation of the financial statement, specifically those that move 
expenditure to PPE balance sheet general ledger codes; and

• Performing sample testing on additions to PPE to ensure that they have 
been correctly classified as capital and included at the correct value to 
identify any revenue items that have been inappropriately capitalised. Financial statement impact

Misstatements that occur in 
relation to the inappropriate 
capitalisation of expenditure could 
affect the expenditure accounts. 

We consider the risk applies to 
capitalisation of revenue 
expenditure and could result in a 
misstatement of cost of services 
reported in the comprehensive 
income and expenditure statement

What is the risk?

Under ISA 240 there is a presumed risk that 
revenue may be misstated due to improper 
revenue recognition. In the public sector, this 
requirement is modified by Practice Note 10 
issued by the Financial Reporting Council, which 
states that auditors should also consider the risk 
that material misstatements may occur by the 
manipulation of expenditure recognition. 

We consider that this risk is more prevalent in 
managing the financial position over the medium 
term. Therefore, we consider this is likely to 
occur through the capitalisation of expenditure  
to Property, Plant and Equipment given the 
extent of the Council’s capital programme. 

We consider this to impact on the valuation of 
PPE balances and by default the completeness 
of expenditure in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement.  

Risk of fraud in revenue 
and expenditure 
recognition – Inappropriate 
capitalisation of 
expenditure*

P
age 101



14

Audit risks

Our response to significant risks (continued) 
What will we do?

We will:

• Consider the work performed by the external valuer, including the 
adequacy of the scope of the work performed, their professional 
capabilities and the results of their work;

• Sample test key asset information used by the valuers in performing their 
valuation;

• Consider the annual cycle of valuations to ensure that assets have been 
valued within a 5 year rolling programme as required by the Code. We will 
also consider if there are any specific changes to assets that have 
occurred and that these have been communicated to the valuer;

• Review assets not subject to valuation in 2019/20 to confirm that the 
remaining asset base is not materially misstated;

• Consider changes to useful economic lives as a result of the most recent 
valuation; 

• Engage internal EY valuation specialists to review the approach of the 
Council valuer, consider assumptions underpinning the valuation and to 
provide expected valuations for a sample of assets valued during the year;

• Test accounting entries have been correctly processed in the financial 
statements; and

• Review the classification of assets and ensure the correct valuation 
methodology has been applied. 

Financial statement impact

Misstatements that occur in 
relation to the risk of valuation of 
the Land and Buildings affect 
multiple balances and disclosures 
throughout the financial 
statements. 

What is the risk?

Property, Plant and Equipment ( PPE) represent 
significant balances in the Council’s accounts. 
Management is required to make material 
judgemental inputs and apply estimation 
techniques to calculate the year-end balances 
recorded in the balance sheet.

The Council carries out a rolling programme that 
ensures that all property, plant and equipment 
required to be measured at fair value is revalued 
at least every five years. Valuations are carried 
out by the Council’s external valuer. Valuers 
must follow the methodologies and bases for 
estimation set out in the professional standards 
of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. 
This process incorporates significant 
judgements.

We identified a number of audit findings in our 
PPE valuations procedures in the prior year. In 
addition, as the Council’s asset base is 
significant, and the outputs from the valuer are 
subject to estimation, there is a risk assets may 
be under/overstated impacting on their 
valuation in the balance sheet. 

ISAs (UK and Ireland) 500 and 540 require us to 
undertake procedures on the use of 
management experts and the assumptions 
underlying fair value estimates.

Valuation and impairment of 
Property, Plant and 
Equipment (Assets valued 
by Fair Value (FV) and 
Existing Use Valuation 
(EUV))

P
age 102



15

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus

What is the risk/area of focus? What will we do?

Accounting for Pension Liability 

The Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice and IAS19 require the Council to make extensive 
disclosures within its financial statements regarding its membership of the Local Government 
Pension Scheme administered by Leicestershire County Council. The Council’s pension fund 
accounting deficit is a material estimated balance and the Code requires that this liability be 
disclosed on the Council’s balance sheet. At 31 March 2021 this totalled £47 million (£31 million 
at 31 March 2020). The information disclosed is based on the IAS 19 report issued to the Council 
by the actuary.

The accounting entries relating to the Local Government Pension Schemes are underpinned by 
significant assumptions and estimates. There is therefore an increased risk of misstatement and 
error. The estimation of the defined benefit obligations is sensitive to a range of assumptions such 
as rates of pay and pension inflation, mortality and discount rates. The pension fund valuations 
separately involve external specialists, to provide these actuarial assumptions. The estimation of 
the defined benefit assets involves estimation on the expected asset returns for the year based on 
the movement in the underlying Pension Fund total assets. A small movement in these 
assumptions could have a material impact on the value in the balance sheet. 

Accounting for this scheme involves significant estimation and judgement and therefore 
management engages an actuary to undertake the calculations on their behalf. ISAs (UK) 500 and 
540 require us to undertake procedures on the use of management experts and the assumptions 
underlying these estimates.

We will:

• Liaise with the auditors of Leicestershire Pension Fund, to 
obtain assurances over the information supplied to the 
actuary in relation to the Council and their work over the 
valuation of the pension fund’s assets;

• Assess the work of the Pension Fund actuary (Hymans 
Robertson) including the assumptions they have used by 
relying on the work of PwC - Consulting Actuaries 
commissioned by the National Audit Office for all Local 
Government sector auditors, and considering any relevant 
reviews by the EY actuarial team; 

• Review and test the accounting entries and disclosures made 
within the Council’s financial statements in relation to IAS19.

Understatement of bad debt provision

Based on the current social conditions, including the spread of the Covid-19 pandemic which has 
affected the financial position of the general public and businesses in the 20/21 financial year 
there could be an increased risk of the Council’s debts not being recovered, due to the inability of 
the Council’s debtors to meet their obligations. As a result, there is an enhanced risk that the 
value of the bad debt provision may not be materially stated. 

We will: 

• Review the method used by the Council against the 
requirements of the CIPFA Code and consider its 
completeness and accuracy;

• Test the calculation of the provision; and

• Select a sample of debtors where management has provided 
for doubtful debts and assess the amount provided for, for 
reasonableness and any evidence of management bias. 

We have identified other areas of the audit, that have not been classified as significant risks, but are still important when considering the risks of material
misstatement to the financial statements and disclosures and therefore may be key audit matters we will include in our audit report.

P
age 103



16

Audit risks

Other areas of audit focus

What is the risk/area of focus? What will we do?

Valuation of Land and Buildings - Assets valued by Depreciated 
Replacement Cost (DRC) and Council Dwellings 

The Council accounts for certain classes of Property, Plant and Equipment 
at valuation. Management is required to make material judgemental 
inputs and apply estimation techniques to calculate the year-end balances 
recorded in the balance sheet. 

Given their more formulaic nature and less reliance on market value, we 
do not consider there to be a significant risk associated with the valuation 
of PPE assets where the valuation methodology is DRC, and  for council 
dwellings where the valuation type is Existing Use Valuation for Social 
Housing (EUV-SH). However, as there is still an element of judgment and 
estimation involved we do consider there to be a higher inherent risk that 
these assets may be under/overstated impacting on their valuation in the 
balance sheet. 

ISAs (UK and Ireland) 500 and 540 require us to undertake procedures on 
the use of management experts and the assumptions underlying 
estimates.

We will:
• Consider the work performed by the Council’s valuers, including the adequacy of the 

scope of the work performed, their professional capabilities and the results of their 
work;

• Sample test asset valuations, utilising the support from EY valuation specialists 
where it is considered appropriate to do so, considering assumptions underpinning 
the valuation and to provide expected valuations of assets selected;

• Consider the annual cycle of valuations to ensure that assets have been valued within 
a 5 year rolling programme as required by the Code. Also consider if there are any 
specific changes to assets that have occurred and that these have been 
communicated to the valuer;

• Review assets not subject to valuation in 2020/21 to confirm that the remaining 
asset base is not materially misstated and whether asset categories held at cost have 
been assessed for impairment and are materially correct;

• Test accounting entries have been correctly processed in the financial statements; 
and

• Review the classification of assets and ensure the correct valuation methodology has 
been applied.

P
age 104



17

Audit risks

Other matters
What is the risk/area of focus? What will we do?

Going Concern Compliance with ISA 570

This auditing standard has been revised in response to enforcement cases and 
well-publicised corporate failures where the auditor’s report failed to highlight 
concerns about the prospects of entities which collapsed shortly after.

The revised standard is effective for audits of financial statements for periods 
commencing on or after 15 December 2019, which for the Council will be the 
audit of the 2020/21 financial statements. The revised standard increases the 
work we are required to perform when assessing whether the Council is a going 
concern. It means UK auditors will follow significantly stronger requirements than 
those required by current international standards; and we have therefore judged it 
appropriate to bring this to the attention of the  Audit Committee.

The CIPFA Guidance Notes for Practitioners states ‘The concept of a going 
concern assumes that an authority’s functions and services will continue in 
operational existence for the foreseeable future. The provisions in the Code in 
respect of going concern reporting requirements reflect the economic and 
statutory environment in which local authorities operate. These provisions 
confirm that, as authorities cannot be created or dissolved without statutory 
prescription, they must prepare their financial statements on a going concern 
basis of accounting.’

‘If an authority were in financial difficulty, the prospects are thus that alternative 
arrangements might be made by central government either for the continuation of 
the services it provides or for assistance with the recovery of a deficit over more 
than one financial year. As a result of this, it would not therefore be appropriate 
for local authority financial statements to be provided on anything other than a 
going concern basis.’

The revised standard requires:

• auditor’s challenge of management’s identification of events or conditions 
impacting going concern, more specific requirements to test 
management’s resulting assessment of going concern, an evaluation of 
the supporting evidence obtained which includes consideration of the risk 
of management bias;

• greater work for us to challenge management’s assessment of going 
concern, thoroughly test the adequacy of the supporting evidence we 
obtained and evaluate the risk of management bias. Our challenge will be 
made based on our knowledge of the Authority obtained through our 
audit, which will include additional specific risk assessment considerations 
which go beyond the current requirements;

• improved transparency with a new reporting requirement for public 
interest entities, listed and large private companies to provide a clear, 
positive conclusion on whether management’s assessment is appropriate, 
and to set out the work we have done in this respect. While the Council are 
not one of the three entity types listed, we will ensure compliance with 
any updated reporting requirements;

• a stand back requirement to consider all of the evidence obtained, 
whether corroborative or contradictory, when we draw our conclusions on 
going concern; and

• necessary consideration regarding the appropriateness of financial 
statement disclosures around going concern.

The revised standard extends requirements to report to regulators where we 
have concerns about going concern.

P
age 105



18

Value for Money Risks03 01V
F
M

P
age 106



19

Value for Money

The Council’s responsibilities for value for money

The Council is required to maintain an effective system of internal control that supports the achievement of its policies, aims and objectives while safeguarding and
securing value for money from the public funds and other resources at its disposal.

As part of the material published with its financial statements, the Council is required to bring together commentary on its governance framework and how this has 
operated during the period in a governance statement. In preparing its governance statement, the Council tailor’s the content to reflect its own individual 
circumstances, consistent with the requirements of the relevant accounting and reporting framework and having regard to any guidance issued in support of that 
framework. This includes a requirement to provide commentary on its arrangements for securing value for money from their use of resources.

V
F
M

Auditor responsibilities under the new Code

Under the 2020 Code we are still required to consider whether the organisation has put in place ‘proper 
arrangements’ to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources. However, there is no 
longer overall evaluation criterion which we need to conclude on. Instead the 2020 Code requires the auditor to 
design their work to provide them with sufficient assurance to enable them to report to the organisation a 
commentary against specified reporting criteria (see below) on the arrangements the organisation has in place 
to secure value for money through economic, efficient and effective use of its resources for the relevant period.

The specified reporting criteria are:

• Financial sustainability
How the organisation plans and manages its resources to ensure it can continue to deliver its services;

• Governance
How the organisation ensures that it makes informed decisions and properly manages its risks; and

• Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness
How the organisation uses information about its costs and performance to improve the way it manages and 
delivers its services.

P
age 107



20

Value for Money

Planning and identifying VFM risks

The NAO’s guidance notes require us to carry out a risk assessment which gathers sufficient evidence to enable us to document our evaluation of the Council’s
arrangements, in order to enable us to draft a commentary under the three reporting criteria. This includes identifying and reporting on any significant weaknesses in 
those arrangements and making appropriate recommendations. This is a change to 2015 Code guidance notes where the NAO required auditors as part of planning, 
to consider the risk of reaching an incorrect conclusion in relation to the overall criterion.

In considering the Council’s arrangements, we are required to consider:

• The Council’s governance statement
• Evidence that the Council’s arrangements were in place during the reporting period;
• Evidence obtained from our work on the accounts;
• The work of inspectorates and other bodies and
• Any other evidence source that we regard as necessary to facilitate the performance of our statutory duties.

We then consider whether there is evidence to suggest that there are significant weaknesses in arrangements. The NAO’s guidance is clear that the assessment of what 
constitutes a significant weakness and the amount of additional audit work required to adequately respond to the risk of a significant weakness in arrangements is a 
matter of professional judgement. However, the NAO states that a weakness may be said to be significant if it:

• Exposes – or could reasonably be expected to expose – the Council to significant financial loss or risk;
• Leads to – or could reasonably be expected to lead to – significant impact on the quality or effectiveness of service or on the Council’s reputation;
• Leads to – or could reasonably be expected to lead to – unlawful actions; or
• Identifies a failure to take action to address a previously identified significant weakness, such as failure to implement or achieve planned progress on 

action/improvement plans.

We should also be informed by a consideration of:

• The magnitude of the issue in relation to the size of the Council;
• Financial consequences in comparison to, for example, levels of income or expenditure, levels of reserves, or impact on budgets or cashflow forecasts; 
• The impact of the weakness on the Council’s reported performance;
• Whether the issue has been identified by the Council’s own internal arrangements and what corrective action has been taken or planned;
• Whether any legal judgements have been made including judicial review;
• Whether there has been any intervention by a regulator or Secretary of State;
• Whether the weakness could be considered significant when assessed against the nature, visibility or sensitivity of the issue;
• The impact on delivery of services to local taxpayers; and
• The length of time the Council has had to respond to the issue.

V
F
M

P
age 108



21

Value for Money V
F
M

Responding to identified risks

Where our planning work has identified a risk of significant weakness, the NAO’s guidance requires us to consider what additional evidence is needed to determine 
whether there is a significant weakness in arrangements and undertake additional procedures as necessary, including where appropriate, challenge of management’s 
assumptions. We are required to report our planned procedures to the Audit Committee.

Reporting on VFM

In addition to the commentary on arrangements, where we are not satisfied that the Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources the 2020 Code has the same requirement as the 2015 Code in that we should refer to this by exception in the audit report on the 
financial statements.

However, a new requirement under the 2020 Code is for us to include the commentary on arrangements in a new Auditor’s Annual Report. The 2020 Code states that 
the commentary should be clear, readily understandable and highlight any issues we wish to draw to the organisation’s attention or the wider public. This should include 
details of any recommendations arising from the audit and follow-up of recommendations issued previously, along with our view as to whether they have been 
implemented satisfactorily.

Status of our 2020/21 VFM planning

We have recently started our VFM planning assessment and to date have not identified any risks of significant weakness. In line with the 2020 Code, we will inform the 
committee if we identify any significant weaknesses in the Council’s arrangements.  

P
age 109



22

Audit materiality04 01

P
age 110



23

Materiality

For planning purposes, materiality for 2020/21 has been set at £1,170k. This
represents 2% of the Council’s 2020/21 draft financial statements gross expenditure
on provision of services). It will be reassessed throughout the audit process. In an
audit of a public sector entity, we consider gross expenditure to be the appropriate
basis for setting materiality as it is the benchmark for public sector programme
activities. We have provided supplemental information about audit materiality in
Appendix C.

Audit materiality

Gross expenditure
on provision of services

£58.5m
Planning

materiality

£1,170k

Performance 
materiality

£878k
Audit

differences

£59k

Materiality

Planning materiality – the amount over which we anticipate misstatements 
would influence the economic decisions of a user of the financial 
statements.

Performance materiality – the amount we use to determine the extent of 
our audit procedures. We have set performance materiality at £878k which 
represents 75% of planning materiality. We have considered a number of 
factors such as the value and nature of misstatements identified in the prior 
year. In this consideration we have determined, based on professional 
judgement, the likelihood of occurrence of misstatement exceeding the 25% 
of planning materiality in the current year. Given the nature of prior year 
misstatements and work already performed in the planning process we have 
set materiality at 75% with additional procedures being undertaken on 
property valuations.  

Audit difference threshold – we propose that misstatements identified 
below this threshold are deemed clearly trivial. We will report to you all 
uncorrected misstatements over this amount relating to the comprehensive 
income and expenditure statement, balance sheet, housing revenue account 
and collection fund that have an effect on income or expenditure or that 
relate to other comprehensive income.

Other uncorrected misstatements, such as reclassifications and 
misstatements in the cashflow statement and movement in reserves 
statement or disclosures, and corrected misstatements will be 
communicated to the extent that they merit the attention of the Audit 
committee, or are important from a qualitative perspective. 

Specific materiality – We have set a materiality for remuneration 
disclosures, related party transactions and councillor allowances. As these 
disclosures are considered to be of interest to users of the accounts we 
have adopted judgement in ensuring that we have tested the disclosures in 
sufficient detail to ensure they are free from material misstatement. 

Key definitions

We request that the Audit Committees confirm its understanding of, and agreement to, 
these materiality and reporting levels.

P
age 111



24

Scope of our audit05 01

P
age 112



25

Objective and Scope of our Audit scoping

Under the Code of Audit Practice our principal objectives are to review and report on 
the Council’s financial statements and arrangements for securing economy, efficiency 
and effectiveness in its use of resources to the extent required by the relevant 
legislation and the requirements of the Code.

We issue an audit report that covers:

1. Financial statement audit 

Our objective is to form an opinion on the financial statements under International 
Standards on Auditing (UK). 

We also perform other procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence 
standards, the Code and other regulations. We outline below the procedures we will 
undertake during the course of our audit.

Procedures required by standards

• Addressing the risk of fraud and error;

• Significant disclosures included in the financial statements;

• Entity-wide controls;

• Reading other information contained in the financial statements and reporting 
whether it is inconsistent with our understanding and the financial statements; and

• Auditor independence.

Procedures required by the Code

• Reviewing, and reporting on as appropriate, other information published with the 
financial statements, including the Annual Governance Statement; and

• Reviewing and reporting on the Whole of Government Accounts return, in line with 
the instructions issued by the NAO.

2. Arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness (value for 
money)

We are required to consider whether the Council has put in place ‘proper arrangements’ 
to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness on its use of resources.

Scope of our audit

Our Audit Process and Strategy
Audit Process Overview

Our audit involves: 

• Identifying and understanding the key processes and internal controls; 
and

• Substantive tests of detail of transactions and amounts.

For 2020/21 we plan to follow a substantive approach to the audit as we 
have concluded this is the most efficient way to obtain the level of audit 
assurance required to conclude that the financial statements are not 
materially misstated. 

Analytics:

We will use our computer-based analytics tools to enable us to capture 
whole populations of your financial data, in particular journal entries. These 
tools:

• Help identify specific exceptions and anomalies which can then be 
subject to more traditional substantive audit tests; and 

• Give greater likelihood of identifying errors than random sampling 
techniques.

We will report the findings from our process and analytics work, including 
any significant weaknesses or inefficiencies identified and recommendations 
for improvement, to management and the Audit Committee. 

Internal audit:

We will review internal audit plan and the results of their work. We will 
reflect the findings from relevant reports, together with reports from any 
other work completed in the year, in our detailed audit plan, where they 
raise issues that could have an impact on the financial statements.

P
age 113



26

Audit team06 01

P
age 114



27

Audit team

Audit team and use of specialists

Audit team structure:

* Key Audit Partner

Audit team

Use of specialists:

When auditing key judgements, we are often required to rely on the input and advice provided by specialists 
who have qualifications and expertise not possessed by the core audit team. The areas where either EY or 
third party specialists provide input for the current year audit are:

In accordance with Auditing Standards, we will evaluate each specialist’s professional competence and 
objectivity, considering their qualifications, experience and available resources, together with the 
independence of the individuals performing the work.

We also consider the work performed by the specialist in light of our knowledge of the Council’s business and 
processes and our assessment of audit risk in the particular area. For example, we would typically perform the 
following procedures:

• Analyse source data and make inquiries as to the procedures used by the specialist to establish whether 
the source data is relevant and reliable;

• Assess the reasonableness of the assumptions and methods used; 

• Consider the appropriateness of the timing of when the specialist carried out the work; and

• Assess whether the substance of the specialist’s findings are properly reflected in the financial 
statements.

Area Specialists

Valuation of Land and Buildings EY Valuations Team

Pensions disclosure EY Actuaries

Hayley Clark *

Lead Audit Partner

Gary Morris

Manager

Nomfundo Magwaza

Senior

P
age 115



28

Audit timeline07 01

P
age 116



29

Audit timeline

Below is a timetable showing the key stages of the audit and the deliverables we have agreed to provide to you through the audit cycle in 2020/21.

From time to time matters may arise that require immediate communication with the Audit Committee and we will discuss them with the Audit Committee Chair as 
appropriate. We will also provide updates on corporate governance and regulatory matters as necessary.

Timeline

Timetable of communication and deliverables

Audit phase Timetable Audit Committee timetable Deliverables

Planning: Risk assessment and setting of 
scopes.

September 2021

Finalisation of planning and walkthrough of 
key systems and processes

November 2021

Year end audit: Account Sample Selection 
and Audit Setup

November 2021 Audit Committee Audit Planning Report

Year end audit: Audit Testing and 
Completion procedures.

February - March 2022

Reporting: Delivery of audit reports March / April 2022 (TBC) Audit Committee

Audit Results Report

Audit opinions and completion certificates

Annual Audit Report

P
age 117



30

Independence08 01

P
age 118



31

Independence

The FRC Ethical Standard and ISA (UK) 260 “Communication of audit matters with those charged with governance”, requires us to communicate with you on a timely basis 
on all significant facts and matters that bear upon our integrity, objectivity and independence. The Ethical Standard, as revised in June 2016, requires that we 
communicate formally both at the planning stage and at the conclusion of the audit, as well as during the course of the audit if appropriate.  The aim of these 
communications is to ensure full and fair disclosure by us to those charged with your governance on matters in which you have an interest.

In addition, during the course of the audit, we are required to communicate with you whenever any significant judgements are made about threats to objectivity and 
independence and the appropriateness of safeguards put in place, for example, when accepting an engagement to provide non-audit services.

We also provide information on any contingent fee arrangements, the amounts of any future services that have been contracted, and details of any written proposal to 
provide non-audit services that has been submitted;

We ensure that the total amount of fees that EY and our network firms have charged to you and your affiliates for the provision of services during the reporting period, 
analysed in appropriate categories, are disclosed.

Required communications

Planning stage Final stage

► The principal threats, if any, to objectivity and 
independence identified by Ernst & Young (EY) 
including consideration of all relationships between 
the you, your affiliates and directors and us;

► The safeguards adopted and the reasons why they 
are considered to be effective, including any 
Engagement Quality review;

► The overall assessment of threats and safeguards;

► Information about the general policies and process 
within EY to maintain objectivity and independence.

► Where EY has determined it is appropriate to apply 
more restrictive independence rules than permitted 
under the Ethical Standard [note: additional 
wording should be included in the communication 
reflecting the client specific situation]

► In order for you to assess the integrity, objectivity and independence of the firm and each covered person, 
we are required to provide a written disclosure of relationships (including the provision of non-audit 
services) that may bear on our integrity, objectivity and independence. This is required to have regard to 
relationships with the entity, its directors and senior management, its affiliates, and its connected parties 
and the threats to integrity or objectivity, including those that could compromise independence that these 
create.  We are also required to disclose any safeguards that we have put in place and why they address 
such threats, together with any other information necessary to enable our objectivity and independence to 
be assessed;

► Details of non-audit services provided and the fees charged in relation thereto;

► Written confirmation that the firm and each covered person is  independent and, if applicable, that any 
non-EY firms used in the group audit or external experts used have confirmed their independence to us;

► Written confirmation that all covered persons are independent;

► Details of any inconsistencies between FRC Ethical Standard and your  policy for the supply of non-audit 
services by EY and any apparent breach of that policy; 

► Details of any contingent fee arrangements for non-audit services provided by us or our network firms; 
and

► An opportunity to discuss auditor independence issues.

Introduction

P
age 119



32

Independence

We highlight the following significant facts and matters that may be reasonably considered to bear upon our objectivity and independence, including the principal threats, 
if any.  We have adopted the safeguards noted below to mitigate these threats along with the reasons why they are considered to be effective. However we will only 
perform non –audit services if the service has been pre-approved in accordance with your policy.

Self interest threats

A self interest threat arises when EY has financial or other interests in the Council.  Examples include where we receive significant fees in respect of non-audit services; 
where we need to recover long outstanding fees; or where we enter into a business relationship with you.  At the time of writ ing, there are no long outstanding fees. 

We believe that it is appropriate for us to undertake permissible non-audit services and we will comply with the policies that you have approved.  

None of the services are prohibited under the FRC's ES or the National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 and the services have been approved in accordance with 
your policy on pre-approval.

At the time of writing, No non audit engagements are currently delivered by EY. No additional safeguards are required. 

A self interest threat may also arise if members of our audit engagement team have objectives or are rewarded in relation to sales of non-audit services to you.  We 
confirm that no member of our audit engagement team, including those from other service lines, has objectives or is rewarded in relation to sales to you, in compliance 
with Ethical Standard part 4.

There are no other self interest threats at the date of this report. 

Overall Assessment

Overall, we consider that the safeguards that have been adopted appropriately mitigate the principal threats identified and we therefore confirm that EY is independent 
and the objectivity and independence of Haley Clark, your audit engagement partner and the audit engagement team have not been compromised.

Relationships, services and related threats and safeguards

Management threats

Partners and employees of EY are prohibited from taking decisions on behalf of management of the Council.  Management threats may also arise during the provision of 
a non-audit service in relation to which management is required to make judgements or decision based on that work.

There are no management threats at the date of this report. 

Other threats

Other threats, such as advocacy, familiarity or intimidation, may arise. There are no other threats at the date of this report.

Self review threats arise when the results of a non-audit service performed by EY or others within the EY network are reflected in the amounts included or disclosed in 
the financial statements. The are no self review threats that exist as the date of this report.

Self review threats

P
age 120



33

Independence

Summary of key changes

• Extraterritorial application of the FRC Ethical Standard to UK PIE and its worldwide affiliates 

• A general prohibition on the provision of non-audit services by the auditor (or its network) to a UK PIE, its UK parent and worldwide subsidiaries
• A narrow list of permitted services where closely related to the audit and/or required by law or regulation
• Absolute prohibition on the following relationships applicable to UK PIE and its affiliates including material significant investees/investors:

• Tax advocacy services
• Remuneration advisory services
• Internal audit services
• Secondment/loan staff arrangements

• An absolute prohibition on contingent fees.
• Requirement to meet the higher standard for business relationships i.e. business relationships between the audit firm and the audit client will only be permitted if it is 

inconsequential.
• Permitted services required by law or regulation will not be subject to the 70% fee cap.
• Grandfathering will apply for otherwise prohibited non-audit services that are open at 15 March 2020 such that the engagement may continue until completed in 

accordance with the original engagement terms. 
• A requirement for the auditor to notify the  Audit Committee where the audit fee might compromise perceived independence and the appropriate safeguards.
• A requirement to report to the  Audit Committee details of any breaches of the Ethical Standard and any actions taken by the firm to address any threats to 

independence. A requirement for non-network component firm whose work is used in the group audit engagement to comply with the same independence standard as 
the group auditor. Our current understanding is that the requirement to follow UK independence rules is limited to the component firm issuing the audit report and 
not to its network. This is subject to clarification with the FRC.

New UK Independence Standards
The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) published the Revised Ethical Standard 2019 in December and it will apply to accounting periods starting on or after 15 March 
2020. A key change in the new Ethical Standard will be a general prohibition on the provision of non-audit services by the auditor (and its network) which will apply to UK 
Public Interest Entities (PIEs). A narrow list of permitted services will continue to be allowed. 

Next Steps

We will continue to monitor and assess all ongoing and proposed non-audit services and relationships to ensure they are permitted under the FRC Revised Ethical 
Standard 2019 which has been effective from 1 April 2020. We do not provide any non-audit services which would be prohibited under the new standard.

P
age 121



34

Independence

EY Transparency Report 2020

Ernst & Young (EY) has policies and procedures that instil professional values as part of firm culture and ensure that the highest standards of objectivity, independence 
and integrity are maintained. 

Details of the key policies and processes in place within EY for maintaining objectivity and independence can be found in our annual Transparency Report which the firm 
is required to publish by law. The most recent version of this Report is for the year end 30 June 2021: 

EY UK 2021 Transparency Report

Other communications

P
age 122

https://assets.ey.com/content/dam/ey-sites/ey-com/en_uk/about-us/transparency-report-2021/ey-uk-2021-transparency-report.pdf?download


35

Appendices09 01

P
age 123



36

Appendix A

Fees

Planned fee 
2020/21

Final fee
2019/20

£ £

Total Fee – Code work 38,046 38,046

Other TBC** 11,185*

Total fees 36,400 +TBC** 49,231

The duty to prescribe fees is a statutory function delegated to Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) by the Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and Local 
Government. This is defined as the fee required by auditors to meet statutory responsibilities under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in accordance with the 
requirements of the Code of Audit Practice and supporting guidance published by the National Audit Office, the financial reporting requirements set out in the Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting published by CIPFA/LASAAC, and the professional standards applicable to auditors’ work. A breakdown of our fees is shown in the 
table below.

All fees exclude VAT

The agreed fee presented is based on the following assumptions:

➢ Officers meeting the agreed timetable of deliverables;

➢ Our accounts opinion and value for money conclusion being unqualified;

➢ Appropriate quality of documentation is provided by the Council; and

➢ The Council has an effective control environment.

If any of the above assumptions prove to be unfounded, we will seek a variation 
to the agreed fee. This will be discussed with the Council in advance.

Fees for the auditor’s consideration of correspondence from the public and 
formal objections will be charged in addition to the scale fee.

*For 2019/20, a scale fee variation of £11,185 has been proposed and considered by management. The elements of the proposed scale fee are:

£4,229   PPE Valuation – additional procedures required, including engagement of EYRE (EY PPE valuation specialist) – Agreed by management
£3,965   Covid-19 impact: Additional procedures required in relation to Going Concern in light of Covid-19 - Agreed by management
£577 Covid-19 impact: Reassessment of audit risks due to impact of Covid-19 - Agreed by management
£2,414 Covid-19 impact: Additional time required due to performing the audit remotely – Agreed by management

The final scale fee variation is to be confirmed. The full proposed £11,185 has been submitted to PSAA along with management’s position on each element.

**For 2020/21, we expect a number of items to impact on the audit fee, such as the continuation of additional procedures relating to PPE, and newly introduced additional 
requirements in relation to value for money, estimates and going concern. The scale fee will be further impacted by a range of factors (see page 37 and 38) which will result 
in additional work. PSAA have released a communication (August 2021) on 2020/21 external audit fees . This includes a minimum £6,000 – £11,000 in relation to 
additional VFM requirements and a minimum of £2,500 in relation to additional procedures required in relation to ISA 540 (Auditing accounting estimates). 

P
age 124



37

We do not believe the existing scale fees provide a clear link with both a public sector organisation’s risk and complexity. For an organisation such as Hinckley and 
Bosworth Borough Council the extent of audit procedures now required mean it will take substantially more hours to complete a quality audit. Based on our own modelling 
of the inputs required to complete an external audit of the Council concludes that a more appropriate scale fee for the delivery of an external audit to the Council would be 
in the region of £70,000.  

Appendix A

Summary of key factors

1. Status of sector.  Financial reporting and decision making in local government has become increasingly complex, for example from the growth in 
commercialisation, speculative ventures and investments. This has also brought increasing risk about the financial sustainabi lity / going concern of bodies given 
the current status of the sector.

• To address this risk our procedures now entail higher samples sizes of transactions, the need to increase our use of analytics data to test more 
transactions at a greater level of depth.  This requires a continual investment in our data analytics tools and audit technology to enhance audit quality. 
This also has an impact on local government with the need to also keep pace with technological advancement in data management and processing for 
audit.

2. Audit of estimates.  There has been a significant increase in the focus on areas of the financial statements where judgemental estimates are made. This is to 
address regulatory expectations from FRC reviews on the extent of audit procedures performed in areas such as the valuation of land and buildings and pension 
assets and liabilities. 

• To address these findings, our required procedures now entail higher samples sizes, increased requirements for corroborative evidence to support the 
assumptions and use of our internal specialists. 

3. Regulatory environment.  Other pressures come from the changing regulatory landscape and audit market dynamics:

• Parliamentary select committee reports, the Brydon and Kingman reviews, plus within the public sector the Redmond review and the new NAO Code of 
Audit practice are all shaping the future of Local Audit.  These regulatory pressures all have a focus on audit quality and what is required of external 
auditors.

• This means continual investment in our audit quality infrastructure in response to these regulatory reviews, the increasing f ines for not meeting the 
requirements plus changes in auditing and accounting standards.  As a firm our compliance costs have now doubled as a proportion of revenue in the last 
five years.  The regulatory lens on Local Audit specifically, is greater.  We are three times more likely to be reviewed by a quality regulator than other 
audits, again increasing our compliance costs of being within this market.

4. As a result Public sector auditing has become less attractive as a profession, especially due to the compressed timetable, regulatory pressure and greater 
compliance requirements. This has contributed to higher attrition rates in our profession over the past year and the shortage of specialist public sector audit staff 
and multidisciplinary teams (for example valuation, pensions, tax and accounting) during the compressed timetables. 

• We need to invest over a five to ten-year cycle to recruit, train and develop a sustainable specialist team of public sector audit staff. We and other firms 
in the sector face intense competition for the best people, with appropriate public sector skills, as a result of a shrinking resource pool. We need to 
remunerate our people appropriately to maintain the attractiveness of the profession, provide the highest performing audit teams and protect audit 
quality. 

• We acknowledge that local authorities are also facing challenges to recruit and retain staff with the necessary financial reporting skills and capabilities.  
This though also exacerbates the challenge for external audits, as where there are shortages it impacts on the ability to del iver on a timely basis. 

P
age 125



38

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Terms of engagement Confirmation by the Audit & standards Committee of acceptance of terms of engagement as 
written in the engagement letter signed by both parties.

The statement of responsibilities serves as the 
formal terms of engagement between the 
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies. 

Our responsibilities Reminder of our responsibilities as set out in the engagement letter The statement of responsibilities serves as the 
formal terms of engagement between the 
PSAA’s appointed auditors and audited bodies.

Planning and audit 
approach 

Communication of the planned scope and timing of the audit, any limitations and the 
significant risks identified.

Audit planning report

Significant findings from 
the audit 

• Our view about the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices including 
accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures

• Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit

• Significant matters, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed with management

• Written representations that we are seeking

• Expected modifications to the audit report

• Other matters if any, significant to the oversight of the financial reporting process

Audit results report

Going concern Events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, including:

• Whether the events or conditions constitute a material uncertainty

• Whether the use of the going concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements

• The adequacy of related disclosures in the financial statements

Audit results report

Misstatements • Uncorrected misstatements and their effect on our audit opinion, unless prohibited by 
law or regulation 

• The effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods 

• A request that any uncorrected misstatement be corrected 

• Corrected misstatements that are significant

• Material misstatements corrected by management 

Audit results report

Appendix B

Required communications with the Audit Committee
We have detailed the communications that we must provide to the Audit Committee.

P
age 126



39

Appendix B

Required communications with the Audit Committee (continued)

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Fraud • Enquiries of the Audit Committee to determine whether they have knowledge of any 
actual, suspected or alleged fraud affecting the entity

• Any fraud that we have identified or information we have obtained that indicates that a 
fraud may exist

• A discussion of any other matters related to fraud

Audit results report

Related parties • Significant matters arising during the audit in connection with the entity’s related parties 
including, when applicable:

• Non-disclosure by management 

• Inappropriate authorisation and approval of transactions 

• Disagreement over disclosures 

• Non-compliance with laws and regulations 

• Difficulty in identifying the party that ultimately controls the entity 

Audit results report

Independence Communication of all significant facts and matters that bear on EY’s, and all individuals 
involved in the audit, objectivity and independence

Communication of key elements of the audit engagement partner’s consideration of 
independence and objectivity such as:

• The principal threats

• Safeguards adopted and their effectiveness

• An overall assessment of threats and safeguards

• Information about the general policies and process within the firm to maintain objectivity 
and independence

Audit Planning Report and Audit Results 
Report

External confirmations • Management’s refusal for us to request confirmations 

• Inability to obtain relevant and reliable audit evidence from other procedures

Audit results report

P
age 127



40

Appendix B

Required communications with the Audit Committee (continued)

Our Reporting to you

Required communications What is reported? When and where

Consideration of laws and 
regulations 

• Audit findings regarding non-compliance where the non-compliance is material and 
believed to be intentional. This communication is subject to compliance with legislation 
on tipping off

• Enquiry of the Audit Committee possible instances of non-compliance with laws and 
regulations that may have a material effect on the financial statements and that the 
Audit Committee may be aware of

Audit results report

Internal controls • Significant deficiencies in internal controls identified during the audit Management letter/audit results report

Representations Written representations we are requesting from management and/or those charged with 
governance

Audit results report

Material inconsistencies 
and misstatements

Material inconsistencies or misstatements of fact identified in other information which 
management has refused to revise

Audit results report

Auditors report • Any circumstances identified that affect the form and content of our auditor’s report Audit results report

VFM assessment and 
commentary

• Our risk assessment in line with the NAO 2020 Code of Audit Practice

• Our Commentary on the arrangements in place to achieve value for money during 
2020/21

VFM Update

Annual Audit Report

Fee Reporting • Breakdown of fee information when the  audit plan is agreed

• Breakdown of fee information at the completion of the audit

• Any non-audit work 

Audit planning report

Annual Audit Report

P
age 128



41

Appendix C

Additional audit information

Our responsibilities  required 
by auditing standards

• Identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. 

• Obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’s internal control.

• Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by management.

• Concluding on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting. 

• Evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

• Obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the 
Council to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. Reading other information contained in the financial 
statements, the Audit Committee reporting appropriately addresses matters communicated by us to the Audit Committee and 
reporting whether it is materially inconsistent with our understanding and the financial statements; and

• Maintaining auditor independence.

Other required procedures during the course of the audit

In addition to the key areas of audit focus outlined in section 2, we have to perform other procedures as required by auditing, ethical and independence standards and 
other regulations. We outline the procedures below that we will undertake during the course of our audit.

Purpose and evaluation of materiality 

For the purposes of determining whether the accounts are free from material error, we define materiality as the magnitude of an omission or misstatement that, 
individually or in the aggregate, in light of the surrounding circumstances, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of the users of the financial 
statements. Our evaluation of it requires professional judgement and necessarily takes into account qualitative as well as quantitative considerations implicit in the 
definition. We would be happy to discuss with you your expectations regarding our detection of misstatements in the financial statements. 

Materiality determines: The level of work performed on individual account balances and financial statement disclosures.

The amount we consider material at the end of the audit may differ from our initial determination. At this stage, however, it is not feasible to anticipate all of the 
circumstances that may ultimately influence our judgement about materiality. At the end of the audit we will form our final opinion by reference to all matters that could 
be significant to users of the accounts, including the total effect of the audit misstatements we identify, and our evaluation of materiality at that date.

P
age 129



T
his page is intentionally left blank



P
age 131

A
genda Item

 10



Commercial in confidence

P
age 132



Commercial in confidence

P
age 133

mailto:emily.j.mayne@uk.gt.com
mailto:zoe.thomas@uk.gt.com
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/


Commercial in confidence

4

P
age 134



Commercial in confidence

5

Q1 (21/22)

P
age 135



Commercial in confidence

6

P
age 136



P
age 137



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of previous meeting
	6 Annual audit letter 2019/2020
	7 Final audit results report
	8 Audit of accounts 2020/21
	9 Audit planning report
	10 Internal audit progress report

